
CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
Helene Schneider 
Mayor 

 
Paul Casey 

City Administrator 
 Bendy White 

Mayor Pro Tempore 
Randy Rowse 
Ordinance Committee Chair 

Ariel Pierre Calonne 
City Attorney 

Gregg Hart 
Finance Committee Chair 

 

Jason Dominguez 
Frank Hotchkiss 
Cathy Murillo 
 

City Hall 
735 Anacapa Street 

http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov 

 
APRIL 12, 2016 

AGENDA 
 
ORDER OF BUSINESS:  Regular meetings of the Finance Committee and the Ordinance Committee begin at 12:30 p.m.  
The regular City Council meeting begins at 2:00 p.m. in the Council Chamber at City Hall.   
 
REPORTS:  Copies of the reports relating to agenda items are available for review in the City Clerk's Office, at the Central 
Library, and http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov.  In accordance with state law requirements, this agenda generally contains 
only a brief general description of each item of business to be transacted or discussed at the meeting.  Should you wish 
more detailed information regarding any particular agenda item, you are encouraged to obtain a copy of the Council 
Agenda Report (a "CAR") for that item from either the Clerk's Office, the Reference Desk at the City's Main Library, or 
online at the City's website (http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov).  Materials related to an item on this agenda submitted to 
the City Council after distribution of the agenda packet are available for public inspection in the City Clerk’s Office located 
at City Hall, 735 Anacapa Street, Santa Barbara, CA 93101, during normal business hours. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:  At the beginning of the 2:00 p.m. session of each regular City Council meeting, and at the 
beginning of each special City Council meeting, any member of the public may address the City Council concerning any 
item not on the Council's agenda.  Any person wishing to make such address should first complete and deliver a “Request 
to Speak” form prior to the time that public comment is taken up by the City Council.  Should City Council business 
continue into the evening session of a regular City Council meeting at 6:00 p.m., the City Council will allow any member of 
the public who did not address them during the 2:00 p.m. session to do so.  The total amount of time for public comments 
will be 15 minutes, and no individual speaker may speak for more than 1 minute.  The City Council, upon majority vote, 
may decline to hear a speaker on the grounds that the subject matter is beyond their jurisdiction. 
 
REQUEST TO SPEAK:  A member of the public may address the Finance or Ordinance Committee or City Council 
regarding any scheduled agenda item.  Any person wishing to make such address should first complete and deliver a 
“Request to Speak” form prior to the time that the item is taken up by the Finance or Ordinance Committee or City 
Council. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR:  The Consent Calendar is comprised of items that will not usually require discussion by the City 
Council.  A Consent Calendar item is open for discussion by the City Council upon request of a Councilmember, City staff, 
or member of the public.  Items on the Consent Calendar may be approved by a single motion.  Should you wish to 
comment on an item listed on the Consent Agenda, after turning in your “Request to Speak” form, you should come 
forward to speak at the time the Council considers the Consent Calendar. 
 
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  If you need auxiliary aids or services or staff assistance to attend or participate 
in this meeting, please contact the City Administrator’s Office at 564-5305.  If possible, notification at least 48 hours prior 
to the meeting will usually enable the City to make reasonable arrangements. Specialized services, such as sign language 
interpretation or documents in Braille, may require additional lead time to arrange. 
 
TELEVISION COVERAGE:  Each regular City Council meeting is broadcast live in English and Spanish on City TV 
Channel 18 and rebroadcast in English on Wednesdays and Thursdays at 7:00 p.m. and Saturdays at 9:00 a.m., and in 
Spanish on Sundays at 4:00 p.m.  Each televised Council meeting is closed captioned for the hearing impaired.  Check 
the City TV program guide at www.citytv18.com for rebroadcasts of Finance and Ordinance Committee meetings, and for 
any changes to the replay schedule. 

http://www.ci.santa-barbara.ca.us/
http://www.santabarbaraca.gov/


 

4/12/2016 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 1 

 
 

ORDER OF BUSINESS 
 

 12:30 p.m. - Finance Committee Meeting, David Gebhard Public Meeting Room, 
   630 Garden Street 
 2:00 p.m. - City Council Meeting  
  
 
ORDINANCE COMMITTEE AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING S 

FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING - 12:30 P.M. IN THE DAVID GEBHARD PUBLIC 
MEETING ROOM, 630 GARDEN STREET (120.03)  
 
 
Subject:  Streets Fund Capital And Grant History (120.03) 

Recommendation:  That the Finance Committee hear a presentation regarding the 
Streets Fund Capital Improvement Program and grant history. 
 
 
 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING – 2:00 P.M. 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
 
CEREMONIAL ITEMS 
 
1. Subject:  Proclamation Declaring April as National Poetry Month (120.04) 

 
 

2. Subject:  Proclamation Declaring April 10-16 as National Library Week 
(120.04) 
 
 

3. Subject:  Employee Recognition - Service Award Pins (410.01) 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the City Administrator to express the 
City's appreciation to employees who are eligible to receive service award pins 
for their years of service through April 30, 2016. 



 

4/12/2016 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 2 

CHANGES TO THE AGENDA 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 

4. Subject:  Minutes 

Recommendation:  That Council waive further reading and approve the minutes 
of the adjourned regular meeting of March 7, 2016, and the regular meeting of 
March 8, 2016. 
  

5. Subject:  Adoption Of Ordinance For The Approval Of Extension For The 
South Coast Energy Efficiency Partnership Agreement (380.01) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Authorizing the Public Works Director to 
Execute a Third Amendment to the 2010-2015 Energy Partnership Agreement 
Between Southern California Edison, the Southern California Gas Company, and 
the City of Santa Barbara to Cover the 2016 Transition Period. 
  

6. Subject:  Introduction Of Ordinance To Increase Loan Amount For 
Wastewater Plant Upgrades From $20,000,000 To $31,388,033 (540.13) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Introduce and subsequently adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance 

of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Authorizing the Approval and 
Execution by the Public Works Director of  Amendment No. 1 to the 
Installment Sale Agreement for the Air Process Improvement Project 
Clean Water State Revolving Fund Project No. 7857-110 Agreement No. 
14-809-550; and 

B. Transfer $50,000 from the Wastewater Capital Fund to the Air Processing 
Improvement SRF Loan Fund for ineligible loan proceeds for extended 
warranty costs for equipment. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 



 

4/12/2016 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 3 

CONSENT CALENDAR (CONT’D) 

7. Subject:  Introduction Of Ordinances Approving Sales Of Excess City 
Lands Related To The Cota Street Bridge Replacement Project (330.01) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A.  Introduce and subsequently adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance 

of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Approving and Authorizing the 
City Administrator to Execute the Land Purchase Agreement, Escrow 
Instructions, and Grant Deed for the Sale of Certain City Excess Land, 
Located at 221 West Cota Street, to Sarintha Bell in the amount of 
$701,550; and  

B.  Introduce and subsequently adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance 
of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Approving and Authorizing the 
City Administrator to Execute the Land Purchase Agreement, Escrow 
Instructions, and Grant Deed for the Sale of Certain City Excess Land, 
Located at 230 West Cota Street, to Ashley Nicole Mines and Brad Travis 
Moore in the amount of $736,032. 

 
 

8. Subject:  Agreement With The County Of Santa Barbara For Mobile Crisis 
And Recovery Emergency Services (520.02) 
 
Recommendation:  That Council approve, and authorize the City Administrator to 
execute a three-year agreement with the County of Santa Barbara for mobile 
Crisis And Recovery Emergency Services (CARES) to the City of Santa Barbara 
for Fiscal Year 2016 through Fiscal Year 2018, for an amount not to exceed 
$62,521 in Fiscal Year 2016, $64,084 in Fiscal Year 2017, and $65,686 in Fiscal 
Year 2018.   
 
 

9. Subject:  Records Destruction For Parks and Recreation Department 
(160.06) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Relating to the Destruction of Records 
Held by the Parks and Recreation Department in the Administration, Parks, and 
Recreation Divisions. 
  

10. Subject:  Records Destruction For Finance Department (160.06) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Relating to the Destruction of Records 
Held by the Finance Department in the Accounting, Administration, General 
Services, Risk Management, and Treasury Divisions. 

 



 

4/12/2016 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 4 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR (CONT’D) 

11. Subject:  Resolution To  Vacate An Offer Of  Pedestrian Easement At 109 
West Ortega Street (530.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A.  Find that the subject Irrevocable Offer of a Pedestrian Easement is not 

necessary for public purposes; and 
B.  Adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of 

Santa Barbara Ordering the Summary Vacation of the Irrevocable Offer of 
a Pedestrian Easement Over a Portion of the Real Property Commonly 
Known As 109 West Ortega Street (APN 037-123-002), as Described in 
Said Irrevocable Offer. 

 
 

12. Subject:  Contract For Construction Of Water Distribution Office 
Improvements (540.01) 

Recommendation:  That Council award a contract with Tomar Construction, Inc., 
in their low bid amount of $48,937, for modernization of the Water Distribution 
Office, Bid No. 3807; and authorize the Public Works Director to execute the 
contract and approve expenditures up to $4,894 to cover any cost increases that 
may result from contract change orders for extra work, and differences between 
estimated bid quantities and actual quantities measured for payment. 
  

13. Subject:  Measure A Five-Year Local Program Of Projects For Fiscal Years 
2017 - 2021 Public Hearing (530.01) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Adopting the Measure A Five-Year Local 
Program of Projects for Fiscal Years 2017 - 2021. 
  

14. Subject:  Airport Master Plan Contract Amendment for Traffic Analysis 
(560.09) 

Recommendation:  That Council approve and authorize the Airport Director to 
execute an Amendment to Contract 23,903 with Coffman Associates for 
Preparation of additional traffic impact analysis for the Airport Master Plan in an 
amount not to exceed $14,000 for a total contract amount of $1,186,204. 
  
 

 
 
 



 

4/12/2016 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 5 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR (CONT’D) 

15. Subject:  Contract For Construction Of The Stretch Equipment Area At The 
Andree Clark Bird Refuge (570.05) 

Recommendation:  That Council award a contract to Shaw Contracting Inc. in 
their low bid amount of $32,318 for construction of the Stretch Equipment at the 
Bird Refuge Project, Bid No. 5435, and authorize the Parks and Recreation 
Director to execute the contract and approve expenditures up to $3,231 for any 
unanticipated work. 
  

16. Subject:  Set A Date For Public Hearing Regarding Appeal Of The Planning 
Commission's Approval of Project Design For 251 South Hope Ave. 
(Housing Authority of the City of SB) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Set the date of May 3, 2016, at 2:00 p.m. for hearing the appeal filed by 

Rick Frickmann, representing the Santa Barbara Urban Creeks Council, of 
the Planning Commission's approval of proposed project owned by the 
Housing Authority of the City of Santa Barbara, 251 S. Hope Avenue, APN 
051-240-008, E-3/PD/SP-4/SD-2 (One-Family Residence, Planned 
Development, Rancho Arroyo Specific Plan and Upper State Street Area 
Overlay) Zones, General Plan Designation:  Commercial/Medium High 
Density Residential (15-27 DU/ACRE) (MST2014-00142).  The project 
consists of a proposal by the Housing Authority of the City of Santa 
Barbara for a new, four-story affordable housing development for very-low 
income senior residents on a vacant 1.76 acre lot adjacent to Arroyo Burro 
Creek.  The proposal would be developed under the City's Average Unit-
Sized Density (AUD) Incentive Program and the City's Density Bonus 
Program with a proposed density of 51 dwelling units per acre.  The 
project includes 89 studio apartments, one-bedroom manager's unit, 
kitchen, dining facilities, storage, and common areas.  The total building 
area is 52,858 square feet (gross) and has a maximum height of 43'-6" 
(excluding the elevator tower).  The average unit size is 332.5 square feet.  
The proposal included 24 uncovered vehicular parking spaces and 5 
bicycle lockers. 
The discretionary applications required for this project are: an Amendment 
to the Rancho Arroyo Specific Plan, Zone Change, Modifications (Front 
Setback, Interior Setback, Lot Area, and Parking).  The project requires an 
environmental finding for a CEQA Guidelines Section 15183 Exemption 
(Project Consistent with the General Plan). 

B. Set the date of May 2, 2016, at 1:30 p.m. for a site visit to the property 
located at 251 S. Hope Avenue. 

 
 



 

4/12/2016 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 6 

 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR (CONT’D) 

NOTICES 

17. The City Clerk has on Thursday, April 7, 2016, posted this agenda in the Office of 
the City Clerk, on the City Hall Public Notice Board on the outside balcony of City 
Hall, and on the Internet. 

18. Receipt of communication advising of a vacancy created on the Santa Barbara 
Youth Council with the resignation of Ali Mikles.  This vacancy will be part of the 
current recruitment. 

 
This concludes the Consent Calendar. 
 
 
REPORT FROM THE FINANCE COMMITTEE 
 
 
CITY COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ATTORNEY REPORTS 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 

19. Subject:  Proposed Fiscal Year 2017 Water Rates (540.13) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Hear a presentation on the proposed Fiscal Year 2017 Water Rates;  
B. Set a Public Hearing date for June 14, 2016, at 2:00 PM, in the Council 

Chambers for Council's consideration of increases in City water rates for 
Fiscal Year 2017; and 

C. Direct staff to send a Notice of Public Hearing to customers informing 
them of the hearing and proposed changes to water rates. 

 

20. Subject:  Memorandum Of Understanding For The Cabrillo Boulevard 
Union Pacific Railroad Underpass Project (530.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Approve and authorize the City Administrator to enter into a Memorandum 

of Understanding, approved as to form by the City Attorney, with the Santa 
Barbara County Association of Governments for Design and 
Environmental Approval of the Union Pacific Railroad Bridge over Cabrillo 
Boulevard; and 

B. Increase appropriations and estimated revenues in the Streets Capital 
Fund by $800,000 for design phase services of the Union Pacific Railroad 
Bridge over Cabrillo Boulevard to be funded via reimbursement from 
Santa Barbara County Association of Governments. 



 

4/12/2016 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 7 

 
 

MAYOR AND COUNCIL REPORTS 

21. Subject:  Request From Councilmembers White And Rowse Regarding A 
Recent Legal Ruling On The Highway 101 Widening Project (160.01) 

Recommendation:  That Council consider the request from Councilmembers 
White and Rowse regarding the City's interest in the next phase of the 
Environmental Impact Report preparation for the Highway 101 Widening Project. 
  

22. Subject:  Request From Councilmembers Dominguez And White Regarding 
Staff Review Of Mobile Home Park Conversion Regulations (640.04) 
 
Recommendation:  That Council consider the request from Councilmembers 
Dominguez and White regarding staff review of the Mobile Home Park 
Conversion Regulations. 
  
 

COUNCIL AND STAFF COMMUNICATIONS 
 
 
COUNCILMEMBER COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT REPORTS 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT (IF NECESSARY) 
 
 
CLOSED SESSIONS 

23. Subject:  Conference With Labor Negotiator (440.03) 
 
Recommendation:  That Council hold a closed session pursuant to the authority 
of Government Code Section 54957.6 to consider instructions to City negotiator 
Kristine Schmidt, Administrative Services Director, regarding negotiations with 
the Firefighters Association and Police Officers Association.  

Scheduling: Duration, 30 minutes; anytime 
Report: None anticipated 

  

ADJOURNMENT 

 
 



                                                                                                                        File Code No. 120.03 
 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 

FINANCE COMMITTEE 

MEETING AGENDA 
 
DATE: April 12, 2016 Gregg Hart, Chair 
TIME: 12:30 P.M.  Bendy White  
PLACE: David Gebhard Public Meeting Room Jason Dominguez 
 630 Garden Street  

 
Paul Casey  Robert Samario 
City Administrator Finance Director 

         
 

ITEMS TO BE CONSIDERED: 
 
 

1. Subject:  Streets Fund Capital And Grant History 
 
Recommendation: That the Finance Committee hear a presentation regarding the 
Streets Fund Capital Improvement Program and grant history.   
 



Agenda Item No. 1 
 

File Code No.  120.03 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

FINANCE COMMITTEE AGENDA REPORT 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: April 12, 2016 
 
TO: Finance Committee 
 
FROM: Transportation Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Streets Fund Capital And Grant History 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
That the Finance Committee hear a presentation regarding the Streets Fund Capital 
Improvement Program and grant history.   
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
At the City Council meeting on February 2, 2016, Council directed staff to work with the 
Finance Committee to develop options for increasing the amount of funding available for 
streets, sidewalks, storm drains, street lights, traffic signals, and other related 
infrastructure (Streets Infrastructure).   
 
On March 1, 2016, the Finance Committee heard staff presentations related to the 
Streets Fund revenue projections and related expenditures. In Fiscal Year 2016, Utility 
Users Tax (UUT) and Gas Tax revenues are expected to be below budget by 
approximately $308,159. In Fiscal Year 2017, those same revenues are estimated to be 
approximately $399,427 less than originally proposed. Measure A revenue has seen 
modest growth.  
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Capital projects are funded from revenues that are available after operating 
expenditures have been budgeted. The table below shows the trend for Capital based 
on the three primary non-grant revenue sources. 
 

Fiscal Year Utility Users Tax 
Revenue 

Gas Tax 
Revenue 

Measure A 
Revenue 

Capital 
Budget 

2014 (Actual) $7,008,178 $2,877,169 $3,446,965 $4,062,192 
2015 (Actual) $6,905,153 $2,305,030 $3,570,627 $3,445,865 
2016 (Adopted) $6,922,027 $2,023,321 $3,640,904 $3,488,028 
2017 (Budget) $7,072,209 $1,863,751 $3,628,245 $1,442,510 
 



Finance Committee Agenda Report 
Streets Fund Capital And Grant History  
April 12, 2016 
Page 2 

 

Flat or declining revenues are not keeping up with general increases to the costs to 
carry out the responsibilities of the streets operations. This fiscal year, the Streets 
Capital Program was partially funded from Streets Fund reserves. Consequently, 
reserves are expected to be almost fully exhausted by the end of Fiscal Year 2016.    
 
As a result of the anticipated revenue shortfall and the lack of Streets Fund reserves, 
staff is only able to budget a limited amount for Capital projects for Fiscal Year 2017. 
The Fiscal Year 2016 Adopted Capital Budget and Fiscal Year 2017 Proposed Capital 
Budger are listed below. 
 
Project 

Fiscal Year 2016 
Adopted Budget 

Fiscal Year 2017 
Proposed Budget 

Overlays $2,513,028 $992,510 
Sidewalk Repairs $250,000 $250,000 
Sidewalk Access Ramps $50,000 $50,000 
Traffic Signal Upgrades $125,000 $0 
Streets Engineering $150,000 $0 
Drainage Improvements $75,000 $50,000 
Traffic Signal Maintenance Program $75,000 $0 
Mission Creek Flood Control Project $50,000 $0 
Post Bridge Contruction Monitoring $50,000 $0 
Traffic Safety/Capacity Improvements $50,000 $50,000 
Bridge Preventive Maintenance Program $50,000 $0 
Street Light Installation  $50,000 $50,000 
   
Total $3,488,028 $1,442,510 
 
There are currently over 30 Capital projects in various stages of completion. The vast 
majority are funded primarily, and in some cases, entirely through grants. The City’s 
ability to install safety and infrastructure improvements is largely dependent on such 
grants. Unfortunately, the amount of capital funds available is far short of the amount of 
funding necessary to maintain our street infrastructure and grants are not available for 
basic maintenance needs including pavement and sidewalk maintenance. This presents 
a difficult choice between leveraging the limited City funds for grants or allocating these 
funds for maintenance without leveraging grant funds. 
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
Streets infrastructure is funded almost entirely from special purpose or restricted funds. 
Funds for Streets infrastructure are flat or declining, while costs continue to rise. 
Deferral of street maintenance in particular, accelerates the rate of deterioration. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Finance Committee Agenda Report 
Streets Fund Capital And Grant History  
April 12, 2016 
Page 3 

 

SUSTAINABILITY IMPACT:   
 
Well-maintained infrastructure supports a healthy environment by minimizing damage to 
vehicles. Well-functioning storm drains effectively convey water to creeks and the 
ocean, while decreasing the amount of transported debris, sediment, and litter.  
 
PREPARED BY: Chris Toth, Transportation Division Manager/mj 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Rebecca J. Bjork, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 
 



/\‘

PROCLAMATION

NATIONAL POETRY MONTH
April 2016

WHEREAS, the County of Santa Barbara is widely recognized as an arts
center, providing a spiritual home for creative activity, and for writers, in
particular; and

WHEREAS, since 1996 the Academy ofAmerican Poets has designated April
as National Poetry Month to highlight the extraordinary achievements and
ongoing legacy of American Poets and increase visibility, presence, and
accessibility ofpoetry in our communities and culture; and

WHEREAS, the City of Santa Barbara recognizing of the value ofpoetry
established a Poet Laureate position in 2005 in order to direct proper
attention and honor to the spoken word by utilizing poetry to celebrate and
elevate community events; and

WHEREAS, City Poet Laureate Sojourner Kincaid-Rolle will be leading the
community through poetry-focused events and programs throughout the
month ofApril; and

AND WHEREAS, the City ofSanta Barbara recognizes the value of the Arts
Commission participation in the Poetry Out Loud National Recitation
Competition through a partnership with the California Arts Council, National
Endowmentfor the Arts & National Poetry Foundation; A program that helps
high school students master public speaking, build self-confidence, and learn
about their literary heritage.

NOW, THEREFORE, I, HELENE SCHNEIDER, by virtue of the authority
vested in me as Mayor of the City of Santa Barbara, California, do hereby
declare April as National Poetry Month in Santa Barbara.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and
caused the Official Seal of the City of Santa Barbara,
California, to be affixed this 5Eh day ofApril 2016.

HELENE SCHNEIDER
Mayor



t; /cçJ)

PROCLAMATION
NATIONAL LIBRARY WEEK

April 10-16, 2016

WHEREAS, libraries are not just about what we have for people, but what we do
for and with people; and

WHEREAS, libraries have long served as trusted and treasured institutions, and
library workers and librariansfuel efforts to better their communities; and

b WHEREAS, libraries are evolving in order to serve their communities and to
continue to fulfill their role in leveling the playingfieldfor all who seek information
and access to technologies; and

WHEREAS, libraries and librarians open up a world of possibilities through
innovative STEAMprograming, Makerspaces, job-seeking resources and the power
ofreading; and

WHEREAS, libraries and librarians are looking beyond their traditional roles and
providing more opportunities for community engagement and deliver new services
that connect closely with patrons’ needs; and

WhEREAS, libraries support democracy and effect social change through their
commitment to provide equitable access to information for all library users
regardless of race, ethnicity, creed, ability, sexual orientation, gender identity or
socio-economic status; and

WHEREAS, libraries, librarians, library workers and supporters across America
are celebrating National Library Week.

NO THEREFORE, I, HELENE SCHNEIDER, by virtue of the authority
invested in me as Mayor of the City of Santa Barbara, c’alzfornia, do hereby
acknowledge and proclaim April 10-16, as NATIONAL LIBRARY WEEK in the
City of Santa Barbara. I encourage all residents to visit the library this week and
explore what’s new at your library, and engage with your librarian. Because ofyou,
Libraries Transform.

IN WITNESS WhEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and
caused the Official Seal of the City ofSanta Barbara, Calzfornia, to
be affixed this 29” day ofMarch 2016.

HELENE SCHNEIDER
MAYOR



Agenda Item No.  3 
File Code No.  410.01 

 

 

 CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: April 12, 2016 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: City Administrator’s Office 
 
SUBJECT: Employee Recognition – Service Award Pins 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council authorize the City Administrator to express the City’s appreciation to 
employees who are eligible to receive service award pins for their years of service through 
April 30, 2016. 
 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The City appreciates the loyalty to the community and the dedication to public service that 
are demonstrated by City employees throughout the organization every day.  Since 1980, 
the City Employees’ Recognition Program has recognized length of City Service.  Service 
award pins are presented to employees for every five years of service.  Those employees 
achieving 25 years of service or more are eligible to receive their pins in front of the City 
Council. 
 
Attached is a list of those employees who will be awarded pins for their service through 
April 30, 2016. 
 
 
ATTACHMENT: April 2016 Service Awards 
 
PREPARED BY: Nicole Grisanti, City Administrator’s Office Supervisor 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Kristine Schmidt, Administrative Services Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



 
ATTACHMENT 

 
April 2016 SERVICE AWARDS 

 
April 12, 2016 Council Meeting 

 
 

10 YEARS 

Hillary Allen, Administrative Specialist, Finance Department 

Andrew Bermond, Project Planner, Airport Department 

Thomas Churpek, Firefighter, Fire Department 

George Gonzales, Grounds Maintenance Worker II, Parks and Recreation Department 

Anthony Lamarca, Firefighter, Fire Department 

Tia Rose Rodriguez, Firefighter, Fire Department 

Moses Romo, Fire Engineer, Fire Department 

Craig Stuart, Fire Engineer, Fire Department 

Aaron Vaughn, Fire Engineer, Fire Department 

 

15 YEARS  

Marcos Mendoza, Grounds Maintenance Worker II, Parks and Recreation Department 

 

20 YEARS  

Cindy Leyva, Administrative Specialist, Parks and Recreation Department 

Carol Lupo, Executive Assistant, Fire Department 

 

25 YEARS  

Hector Balboa, Streets Maintenance Worker II, Public Works Department 

Kenneth Brown, Parks Supervisor, Parks and Recreation Department 

Vidal Gonzalez, Streets Maintenance Worker II, Public Works Department 

Louis Gutierrez, Wastewater Collection Systems Lead Operator,  
      Public Works Department 

Jose Medina, Custodian, Public Works Department 



3/7/2016 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 1 
APR 12 2016 #4 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 

 
 

ADJOURNED REGULAR MEETING 
March 7, 2016 

1818 CASTILLO STREET 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Helene Schneider called the meeting to order at 1:40 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Councilmembers present:  Jason Dominguez, Frank Hotchkiss, Cathy Murillo, Randy 
Rowse, Mayor Schneider. 
Councilmembers absent:  Gregg Hart, Bendy White. 
Staff present:  City Attorney Ariel Pierre Calonne, Deputy City Clerk Susan Tschech. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
No one wished to speak. 
 
NOTICES 
 
The City Clerk has on Thursday, March 3, 2016, posted this agenda in the Office of the 
City Clerk, on the City Hall Public Notice Board on the outside balcony of City Hall, and 
on the Internet. 
 
SITE VISIT 
 
Subject:  1818 Castillo Street 
 
Recommendation:  That Council make a site visit to the property located at 1818 
Castillo Street, which is the subject of an appeal hearing set for March 8, 2016, at 
2:00 p.m. 
 
Documents: 

Reduced site plans for the proposed project. 
 

(Cont’d) 



3/7/2016 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 2 

Subject:  1818 Castillo Street (Cont’d) 
 
Discussion: 

Project Planner Irma Unzueta reviewed the project’s site plans and answered 
Councilmembers’ questions.  The Council could view the front portion of the site 
only. 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mayor Schneider adjourned the meeting at 1:50 p.m. 
 
 
SANTA BARBARA CITY COUNCIL SANTA BARBARA 
  CITY CLERK'S OFFICE 
 
 
 
  ATTEST:       
HELENE SCHNEIDER  SUSAN TSCHECH, CMC 
MAYOR  DEPUTY CITY CLERK  
 



3/8/2016 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 1 
APR 12 2016 #4 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 

 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
March 8, 2016 

COUNCIL CHAMBER, 735 ANACAPA STREET 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Helene Schneider called the meeting to order at 2:00 p.m. (The Finance and 
Ordinance Committees, which ordinarily meet at 12:30 p.m., did not meet on this date.) 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
Mayor Schneider.  
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Councilmembers present:  Jason Dominguez, Gregg Hart, Frank Hotchkiss, Cathy 
Murillo, Randy Rowse, Bendy White, Mayor Schneider. 
Councilmembers absent:  None. 
Staff present:  City Administrator Paul Casey, City Attorney Ariel Pierre Calonne, 
Deputy City Clerk Susan Tschech. 
 
CHANGES TO THE AGENDA 
 
Item Removed from Agenda 
 
City Administrator Casey advised that the following item was being removed from the 
agenda, as the closed session is no longer needed. 
 
13. Subject:  Conference With City Attorney - Anticipated Litigation (160.03) 

Recommendation:  That Council hold a closed session to decide whether to 
authorize the initiation of litigation (one potential case) pursuant to Government 
Code sections 54956.9(d)(4) and take appropriate action as needed. 
 Scheduling:  Duration, 15 minutes; anytime 
 Report:  None 



3/8/2016 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 2 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Speakers:  Bob Mayo; Isaac Eaves, Santa Barbara City College Student Senate; Emily 
Gribble; Anna Campbell and Bernard Unterman, Safer on Sola; David Williams; 
Stephen Meade; Phil Walker; Luz Reyes-Martin; Pete Dal Bello; Scott Wenz, Cars Are 
Basic; John Day; Tom Widroe, City Watch; John Campbell. 
 
Councilmember Hotchkiss left the meeting at 2:37 p.m. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR (Item Nos. 1 – 9) 
 
The title of the ordinance related to Item No. 2 was read. 
 
Motion: 

Councilmembers Rowse/White to approve the Consent Calendar as 
recommended. 

Vote: 
Unanimous roll call vote (Absent:  Councilmember Hotchkiss). 
 

1. Subject:  Minutes 

Recommendation:  That Council waive further reading and approve the minutes 
of the special meeting of February 17, 2016. 
 
Action:  Approved the recommendation. 

2. Subject:  Introduction Of Ordinance For Lease Agreement With Allied 
Voyage, LLC, Doing Business As Ocean Aire Marine Electronics - Located 
At 125 Harbor Way, #7 (330.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council introduce and subsequently adopt, by reading of 
title only, An Ordinance of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Approving a 
Five-Year Lease Agreement with One Five-Year Option with Allied Voyage, LLC, 
Doing Business As Ocean Aire, at an Average Initial Base Rent of $1,200 Per 
Month, for the 339 Square-Foot Office Space Located at 125 Harbor Way, Suite 
#7, Effective April 15, 2016. 
 
Action:  Approved the recommendation (March 8, 2016, report from the 
Waterfront Director; proposed ordinance). 
 

3. Subject:  Agreement To Use Recycled Water For Irrigation At 706 East 
Haley (540.13) 

Recommendation:  That Council approve an Agreement to Use Recycled Water 
between the City of Santa Barbara and Santa Barbara Land Co., LLC, a 
California Limited Liability Corporation, for purchase, use, and delivery of the 
City's recycled water to 706 East Haley. 

(Cont’d) 



3/8/2016 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 3 

3. (Cont’d) 
 
Action:  Approved the recommendation; Agreement No. 25,435 (March 8, 2016, 
report from the Public Works Director). 
 

4. Subject:  Five-Year Lease Agreement With The Blue Water Hunter Dive 
Shop Located At 117-D Harbor Way (330.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council approve a five-year lease agreement with 
Andrew M. Taylor, a Sole Proprietor, doing business as The Blue Water Hunter, 
at an initial base rent of $2,430.50 per month, for the 878 square-foot lease 
space located at 117-D Harbor Way. 
 
Action:  Approved the recommendation; Agreement No. 25,436 (March 8, 2016, 
report from the Waterfront Director). 
 

5. Subject:  Contract For Construction Of The Americans With Disabilities Act 
Ramp At Oak Park Pool Project (570.05) 

Recommendation:  That Council award a contract to Arroyo Seco Construction in 
their low bid amount of $65,400 for construction of the Americans with Disabilities 
Act (ADA) Ramp at Oak Park Pool Project, Bid No. 3813, and authorize the 
Parks and Recreation Director to execute the contract and approve expenditures 
up to $6,540 for any unanticipated work. 
 
Action:  Approved the recommendation; Contract No. 25,437 (March 8, 2016, 
report from the Parks and Recreation Director). 
 

6. Subject:  Extension Of The Professional Services Agreement With Garden 
State Fireworks For July Fourth And Parade Of Lights Fireworks Displays 
(570.03) 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the Waterfront Director to exercise the 
renewal terms on the Professional Services Agreement with Garden State 
Fireworks for the 2016-2019 July Fourth and Parade of Lights Fireworks 
Displays. 
 
Action:  Approved the recommendation (March 8, 2016, report from the 
Waterfront Director). 
 

7. Subject:  Preferential Parking Along The South Side Of Cabrillo Boulevard 
For Land And Sea Tours (Land Shark) (550.08) 

Recommendation:  That Council approve an application for preferential parking 
by Land and Sea Tours until such time that Council terminates the privilege, or 
the applicant no longer meets the requirements of Santa Barbara Municipal Code 
Section 10.44.250, or Santa Barbara Municipal Code Section 10.44.250 is 
updated. 

(Cont’d) 



3/8/2016 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 4 

7. (Cont’d) 
 
Action:  Approved the recommendation (March 8, 2016, report from the Public 
Works Director). 
 

8. Subject:  Contract For Construction Of The Quarantina Street Permeable 
Pavers Project (530.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Award a contract with Brough Construction, Inc., waiving minor 

irregularities, in their low bid amount of $1,491,943 for construction of the 
Low Impact Development Demonstration Streets, Sidewalks, and Alleys 
Project - Phase II, Bid No. 3783; and authorize the Public Works Director 
to execute the contract and approve expenditures up to $149,194 to cover 
any cost increases that may result from contract change orders for extra 
work and differences between estimated bid quantities and actual 
quantities measured for payment; 

B. Approve a transfer of reserves in the amount of $461,473 from the Creeks 
Operating Fund to the Creeks Capital Fund; and 

C. Increase appropriations and estimated revenues by $461,473 in the 
Creeks Capital Fund to cover the cost of the City's matching requirement 
for the Proposition 84 Grant that will be used to fund the Project. 

 
Action:  Approved the recommendations; Contract No. 25,438 (March 8, 2016, 
report from the Public Works and Parks and Recreation Directors). 

 
NOTICES 

9. The City Clerk has on Thursday, March 3, 2016, posted this agenda in the Office 
of the City Clerk, on the City Hall Public Notice Board on the outside balcony of 
City Hall, and on the Internet. 

 
This concluded the Consent Calendar. 

 
Councilmember Hotchkiss returned to the meeting at 2:40 p.m. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ATTORNEY REPORTS 

CITY ATTORNEY 

10. Subject:  Reintroduction Of Noise Ordinance Amendments (630.09) 

Recommendation:  That Council introduce and subsequently adopt, by reading of 
title only, An Ordinance of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Amending 
Chapter 9.16 of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code in its Entirety Pertaining to 
Noise. 

(Cont’d) 



3/8/2016 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 5 

10. (Cont’d) 
 
Documents: 

- March 8, 2015, report from the City Attorney. 
- Proposed Ordinance. 

 
The title of the ordinance was read. 
 
Speakers: 

- Staff:  City Attorney Ariel Calonne. 
- Members of the Public:  Brad Hardison; Tom Widroe, City Watch. 

 
Motion: 

Councilmembers Murillo/White to approve the recommendation. 
Vote: 

Unanimous voice vote. 
 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 

11. Subject:  Policy Direction For The Fiscal Year 2017 Water Rate Study 
(540.11) 

Recommendation:  That Council receive a presentation and provide direction on 
assumptions for the Fiscal Year 2017 Water Rate Study, specifically for the 
planned reserves management during continued drought conditions. 
 
Documents: 

- March 8, 2016, report from the Public Works Director. 
- PowerPoint presentation prepared and made by Staff. 

 
Speakers: 

- Staff:  Water Supply Manager Kelley Dyer, Finance Director Robert 
Samario, Water Resources Manager Joshua Haggmark, City 
Administrator Paul Casey. 

- Members of the Public:  Tom Widroe, City Watch. 
 

Motion: 
Councilmembers White/Hart to approve Scenario 1 (outlined in Council 
Agenda Report) for planned reserves management during continued 
drought conditions. 

Vote: 
Unanimous voice vote. 
 

RECESS 
 
3:42 p.m. – 3:51 p.m. 



3/8/2016 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 6 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

QUASI-JUDICIAL HEARING RULES APPLY TO THE FOLLOWING AGENDA ITEM 

12. Subject:  Appeal Of Architectural Board Of Review Project Design Approval 
Of A New Seven-Unit Apartment Building At 1818 Castillo Street  (640.07) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Deny the appeal of Eric and Elenor Wernicke of the Architectural Board of 

Review's decision to grant Project Design Approval for the proposed new 
seven-unit apartment building; and  

B. Direct Staff to return to Council with Decision and Findings reflecting the 
outcome of the appeal. 

 
Documents: 

- March 8, 2016, report from the Community Development Director. 
- PowerPoint presentation prepared and made by Staff. 
- March 4, 2016, letter from RRM Design Group, representing the Applicant. 
- PowerPoint presentation prepared and made by the Appellant. 
- PowerPoint presentation prepared and made by the Applicant. 
- Graph and table of lot sizes in immediate neighborhood of the subject 

property, submitted by Rick Lang. 
 
Public Comment Opened: 

3:52 p.m. 
 

Speakers: 
- Staff:  Project Planner Irma Unzueta, Principal Transportation Planner Rob 

Dayton, City Attorney Ariel Calonne, City Administrator Paul Casey. 
- Appellant:  Eric Wernicke. 
- Applicant:  Detlev Peikert and Lisa Plowman, representing RRM Design 

Group. 
- Architectural Board of Review:  Member Courtney Jane Miller. 
- Members of the Public:  Suzanne Smith, Kay Hoffman, Eric Baizer, 

Pamela Lasker, Rick Lang. 
 

Public Comment Closed: 
5:21 p.m. 
 

Motion: 
Councilmembers Hotchkiss/Rowse to approve the recommendations, but 
direct Staff to conduct a red curb survey of the neighborhood for a 
potential increase in the supply of on-street parking. 

Vote: 
Majority roll call vote (Noes:  Councilmembers Dominguez, White). 
 

 



3/8/2016 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 7 

COUNCILMEMBER COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT REPORTS 
 
Information: 
 - Councilmember White reported that the Cachuma Operation and Maintenance 

Board had approved the moving of the barge in Cachuma Lake. 
 - Councilmember Murillo spoke about her attendance at recent meetings of the 

Santa Barbara Youth Council, Housing Authority Commission, and the 
Community Action Commission; she also expressed appreciation for the benefit 
concert held for the Alano Club. 

 - Councilmember Hart mentioned that he and Councilmember Rowse had 
attended a presentation regarding a project to build a student dorm in the Mesa 
area. 

 - Councilmember Dominguez noted the passing of two prominent Eastside 
business owners, Gene Bantilan of Santa Barbara Plumbing Supplies, and Jim 
Dixon of Tri-County Produce. 

 - Mayor Schneider reported on Opening Day for both the Sailing and Yacht Clubs, 
and she commended the Waterfront Department for its work with the Army Corps 
of Engineers to make the Harbor ready for these events.  She also commented 
on a new documentary by local filmmakers entitled “West of the West,” regarding 
the Channel Islands. 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mayor Schneider adjourned the meeting at 6:10 p.m. 
 
 
SANTA BARBARA CITY COUNCIL SANTA BARBARA 
  CITY CLERK'S OFFICE 
 
 
 
  ATTEST:       
HELENE SCHNEIDER  SUSAN TSCHECH, CMC 
MAYOR  DEPUTY CITY CLERK  
 



ORDINANCE NO. ____________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF SANTA BARBARA AUTHORIZING THE PUBLIC 
WORKS DIRECTOR TO EXECUTE A THIRD 
AMENDMENT TO THE 2010-2015 ENERGY 
PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON, THE SOUTHERN 
CALIFORNIA GAS COMPANY, AND THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA TO COVER THE 2016 
TRANSITION PERIOD 

 
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA BARBARA DOES ORDAIN AS 
FOLLOWS: 

 
SECTION 1. The Public Works Director of the City is hereby authorized to 
execute a third amendment to an agreement by and between Southern California 
Edison (SCE), the Southern California Gas Company (Gas Company) and the 
City of Santa Barbara for a term not to exceed seven (7) years in order for the 
City to participate in the South Coast Energy Efficiency Partnership and receive 
incentive and program funds on a per-project basis. 
 
 

APR 12 2016 #5 
(380.01) 



Agenda Item No.  6 
 

File Code No.  540.13 
 

 

  CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 
 
 

 
AGENDA DATE: April 12, 2016 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Water Resources Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Introduction Of Ordinance To Increase Loan Amount For Wastewater 

Plant Upgrades From $20,000,000 To $31,388,033 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council: 
 
A. Introduce and subsequently adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of the 

Council of the City of Santa Barbara Authorizing the Approval and Execution by the 
Public Works Director of Amendment No. 1 to the Installment Sale Agreement for 
the Air Process Improvement Project Clean Water State Revolving Fund Project 
No. 7857-110 Agreement No. 14-809-550; and 

 
B. Transfer $50,000 from the Wastewater Capital Fund to the Air Processing 

Improvement SRF Loan Fund for ineligible loan proceeds for extended warranty 
costs for equipment. 

 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Background 
 
The El Estero Wastewater Treatment Plant (El Estero) processes approximately six 
million gallons of wastewater each day. It was originally constructed in 1952; however, a 
majority of El Estero’s current infrastructure was constructed in 1978. While El Estero 
provides suitable secondary effluent quality to meet all regulatory requirements, the 
need to replace aging infrastructure was an opportunity to also improve the consistency 
of the secondary effluent, which is desired for recycled water treatment.   
 
Although consistent improvements to maintain treatment quality have been made over 
the past several years, El Estero nonetheless has had longstanding issues with highly 
variable secondary effluent quality, operational inflexibility, and energy inefficiency.  
Therefore, on June 29, 2010, Council awarded a contract to Brown and Caldwell (BC) to 
prepare an Assessment Report to evaluate and develop recommendations to improve 
the secondary treatment process. BC, working with staff, evaluated several alternative 



Council Agenda Report 
Introduction Of Ordinance To Increase Loan Amount For Wastewater Plant Upgrades 
From $20,000,000 To $31,388,033 
April 12, 2016 
Page 2  
 

 

operational approaches for improving the secondary treatment process, which resulted 
in staff’s recommendation to pursue the Air Process Improvement Project (Project). 
 
On October 11, 2011, Council awarded a contract to BC to prepare a Preliminary 
Design Report (PDR) and, on January 15, 2013, a second-phase PDR for the Project. 
Combined, these two PDRs formed the basis for final design.      
 
On September 9, 2014, Council awarded a contract to BC for Phase I of the final design 
for the Project. At that time, the City had initiated an application for a Clean Water State 
Revolving Fund (SRF) Installment Sale Agreement to finance the design and 
construction of this Project. City staff anticipated an executed agreement with the State 
of California within a few months. The SRF Agreement was later executed, and Phase 2 
of the final design was awarded to BC on December 16, 2014.   
 
On March 22, 2016, Council awarded a construction contract to Stanek Constructors, 
Inc., for construction of the Project. Council also authorized contracts with MNS 
Engineers, Inc., BC, and Dudek for professional services during the construction phase, 
and increased estimated revenues and appropriations in the Wastewater State 
Revolving Fund Loan Fund (SRF Fund), for a total amount of $31,438,033.  At that time, 
the City was anticipating that the State would process an amendment to the SRF 
Agreement within a few months, thereby increasing the maximum not-to-exceed amount 
from $20 million to $31,438,033, the total Project cost.  Amendment No. 1 to the SRF 
Agreement has now been received from the State Water Resources Control Board and 
is submitted to the City Council for consideration and approval.  
 
Project Description 
 
The work consists of modifications to El Estero’s secondary treatment process, the 
nitrification/denitrification system, upgrades to the existing aeration and secondary 
clarifier sludge withdrawal systems, and implementation of a nitrate return to address 
odor control issues and clarifier performance issues.   
 
The nitrification/denitrification process will produce a more stable secondary effluent, 
create higher-quality process water for subsequent production of recycled water, and 
will yield a higher quality of treated effluent discharge into the Pacific Ocean.   
 
Installment Sale Agreement 
 
On September 16, 2014, Council adopted an ordinance authorizing the approval and 
execution of the SRF Agreement for the Project.  The SRF Agreement was for a 20-
year loan, in the maximum amount of $20 million, at an interest rate of 1.9 percent. In 
addition to the ordinance, the City adopted several resolutions. City Council Resolution 
No. 13-009 allowed reimbursement for certain expenditures made prior to the final 
approval of the SRF Agreement. On December 8, 2015, Council amended Resolution 
No. 13-009 in recognition that the City intended to apply for an increase to the loan for a 
maximum principal amount of $35 million, and authorized reimbursement of 



Council Agenda Report 
Introduction Of Ordinance To Increase Loan Amount For Wastewater Plant Upgrades 
From $20,000,000 To $31,388,033 
April 12, 2016 
Page 3  
 

 

expenditures.  Staff has submitted a Final Budget Approval to the State to amend the 
SRF Agreement amount based on actual expected costs rather than the budgetary 
costs that the City provided during the initial SRF process.  
 
The City has now received Amendment No. 1 to the SRF Agreement, increasing the 
maximum amount from $20 million to $31,388,033.  The financing terms remain the 
same, at 1.9 percent for 20 years.  However, this amount is $50,000 less than the total 
Project cost of $31,438,033.  The State determined that extended warranty for 
equipment is not eligible for SRF financing.   City staff has reviewed the Amendment 
No. 1 provided by the State and recommends that Council approve the Amendment and 
authorize the Public Works Director to execute the amended SRF Agreement by 
introduction and subsequent adoption of the Ordinance.  Staff will decrease expected 
revenues and expenses in the SRF Fund by $50,000, to match the SRF Agreement 
maximum principal amount of $31,388,033.  There are sufficient funds available in the 
Wastewater Capital Fund, El Estero Equipment Rehabilitation Project, to cover the 
$50,000 of ineligible costs for extended warranty.  
 
SUSTAINABILITY IMPACT: 
 
This Project will improve water quality for both recycled water production and treated 
effluent discharge into the ocean. It will also provide for more energy efficient equipment 
at El Estero, as the blowers, the number one energy demand for El Estero, will be 
updated to a more energy-efficient model.   
 
PREPARED BY: Lisa Arroyo, Wastewater System Manager/mh 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Rebecca J. Bjork, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 
 



1 

ORDINANCE NO. ____ 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA 
BARBARA AUTHORIZING THE APPROVAL AND EXECUTION 
BY THE PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR OF AMENDMENT NO. 1 
TO THE INSTALLMENT SALE AGREEMENT FOR THE AIR 
PROCESS IMPROVEMENT PROJECT CLEAN WATER STATE 
REVOLVING FUND PROJECT NO. 7857-110 AGREEMENT 
NO. 14-809-550. 

WHEREAS, in order to finance the Air Process Improvement Project, the City and State 
Water Board entered into an Installment Sale Agreement for a maximum principal 
amount of $20 million dated as of July 28, 2014;  

WHEREAS, through the Installment Sale Agreement, the State Water Board will provide 
the funds necessary to construct the Air Process Improvement Project which funds will 
be repaid by the City in equal annual installments together with 1.9 percent interest 
accruing thereon, from the Wastewater Fund Net System Revenues for twenty (20) 
years,  will be beginning one year after completion of construction;  

WHEREAS, the City wishes to increase the maximum principal amount of the 
Installment Sale Agreement to $31,388,033; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Santa Barbara (the “City Council”) has been 
presented with the form of Amendment No. 1 to the Installment Sale Agreement dated 
as of February 29, 2016, and the City Council has examined and approved such 
document and desires to authorize and direct the execution of such document. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1.  ALL of the recitals herein contained are true and correct, and the City 
Council so finds. 

Section 2.  The form of  Amendment No. 1 to the Installment Sale Agreement, on file 
with the City Clerk, is hereby approved, and the Public Works Director of the City and 
any such other officer of the City as the Public Works Director may designate (the 
“Authorized Officers”), are each hereby authorized and directed, for and in the name 
and on behalf of the City, to execute and deliver Amendment No. 1 to the Installment 
Sale Agreement dated as of February 29, 2016, in substantially said form with such 
changes therein as the Authorized Officer executing the same may require or approve, 
such approval to be conclusively evidenced by the execution and delivery thereof; 
provided, however, that the principal amount of the Installment Payments shall not 
exceed $31,388,033, the final Installment Payment shall be payable no later than twenty 
years following the notice of completion of construction of the Project and the true 
interest cost of the interest on the Installment Payments shall not exceed 1.9 percent 
per annum. 



2 

Section 3.  The Authorized Officers are hereby authorized and directed, jointly and 
severally, to do any and all things which they may deem necessary or advisable in order 
to consummate the transactions herein authorized and otherwise to carry out, give 
effect to and comply with the terms and intent of this Ordinance. All actions heretofore 
taken by the officers, employees, and agents of the City with respect to the transactions 
set forth above are hereby approved, confirmed, and ratified. 

Section 4.  The Mayor shall sign and the City Clerk shall attest to the passage of this 
Ordinance.  The City Council hereby orders that, in lieu of the publication of this 
Ordinance once in the official newspaper of the City within 15 days after its adoption, 
this Ordinance shall be published by title only once in the official newspaper of the City 
within 15 days after its adoption, provided that the full text shall be available to the 
public at the City Clerk’s Office, and such publication by title only shall so state.  This 
Ordinance shall become effective 30 days from and after the date of its adoption. 

 
 



Agenda Item No.  7 
 

File Code No.  330.01 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: April 12, 2016 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Engineering Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Introduction Of Ordinances Approving Sales Of Excess City Lands 

Related To The Cota Street Bridge Replacement Project 
 
RECOMMENDATION: That Council: 
 
A. Introduce and subsequently adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of the 

Council of the City of Santa Barbara Approving and Authorizing the City Administrator 
to Execute the Land Purchase Agreement, Escrow Instructions, and Grant Deed for 
the Sale of Certain City Excess Land, Located at 221 West Cota Street, to Sarintha 
Bell in the amount of $701,550; and  

 
B.  Introduce and subsequently adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of the 

Council of the City of Santa Barbara Approving and Authorizing the City Administrator 
to Execute the Land Purchase Agreement, Escrow Instructions, and Grant Deed for 
the Sale of Certain City Excess Land, Located at 230 West Cota Street, to Ashley 
Nicole Mines and Brad Travis Moore in the amount of $736,032.  

 
DISCUSSION:  
 
On July 14, 2015, Council authorized the sale of excess real properties located at 221 and 
230 West Cota Street, and 536 Bath Street (Properties) pursuant to the Municipal Code 
Chapter 4.28. The Properties were acquired as necessary right of way acquisitions for the 
Cota Street Bridge Replacement Project (Project), which is now substantially complete. 
  
On September 15, 2015, a contract for professional services with Goodwin and Thyne 
Properties (Goodwin and Thyne) was approved for the listing and bid-auction sale of the 
Properties. The professional services agreement allowed for a three and one-half percent 
selling commission, one and one-half percent to be paid to Goodwin and Thyne as the 
listing agent, and two percent to the buyer’s agent, should there be one. In the absence of 
a buyer’s agent, the total selling commission would be one and one-half percent of the 
total sales price to Goodwin and Thyne. 
 
 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Introduction Of Ordinances Approving Sales Of Excess City Lands Related To The Cota 
Street Bridge Replacement Project  
April 12, 2016 
Page 2 

 

 
SUMMARY OF EXCESS PROPERTIES (Attachments 1 and 2):  
 

1. 221 West Cota Street (APN: 037-161-002) is a duplex consisting of two one- 
bedroom, one-bath units. It is located adjacent to the southeasterly bank of Mission 
Creek. The property was originally acquired as approved by Council on April 9, 
2013, as a necessary right of way acquisition for the Project.  
 

2. 230 West Cota Street (APN: 037-121-018) is a three-bedroom, one-bath, single-
family residence that was in the process of being renovated when acquired. It is 
located adjacent to the northwesterly bank of Mission Creek. The property was 
originally acquired as approved by Council on July 16, 2013, as a necessary right of 
way acquisition for the Project.  
 

3. 536 Bath Street (APN 037-161-001) is a two-bedroom, one-bath, single-family 
residence. It is located adjacent to the southwesterly bank of Mission Creek. The 
property was originally acquired as approved by Council on April 9, 2013, as a 
necessary right of way acquisition for the Project.  
 
 

The Properties and the areas adjacent to the newly completed Cota Street Bridge and 
Creek walls have been provided new landscaping and irrigation improvements. The 
driveway at the 536 Bath Street property was graded and repaved due to damages 
caused by tree root obstructions and vehicle use during bridge construction. 
 
Environmental Review:  
 
In accordance with Caltrans Environmental Handbook (Volume 2), Caltrans, as the 
agency responsible for compliance, required a complete environmental assessment under 
the Federal Highway Administration Guidelines.  
 
The assessment was performed to City standards, under the Master Environmental 
Assessment guidelines pertaining to historic structures and sites. The approved Historic 
Property Survey Report (Applied Earthworks, Inc., June 2011) and Memorandum 
(Applied Earthworks, Inc., May 23, 2011) state that the subject properties (221 West 
Cota Street, 536 Bath Street, 230 West Cota Street) and the Cota Street Bridge were 
not found to be historically significant. No mitigation was required. 
 
Marketing and Sale of Land and Noticing of Auction: 
 
Goodwin and Thyne was contracted to manage the marketing and bid-sale process as 
well as a market analysis for the excess Properties. A minimum offer/bid price for each of 
the properties was established. The Properties were listed in the Multiple Listing Service, 
on the internet, and advertised in local print publications on several occasions. Notice of 
the City’s bid/auction process was published on two different occasions, detailing the 



Council Agenda Report 
Introduction Of Ordinances Approving Sales Of Excess City Lands Related To The Cota 
Street Bridge Replacement Project  
April 12, 2016 
Page 3 

 

terms, dates, and location of the sealed bid/auctions. Information packages were made 
available to all interested parties, five weeks prior to the auctions.  
 
As advertised, on March 22, 2016, at 10:00 am, and 1:00 pm, and then again on March 
23, 2016 at 2:00 pm, the bid/auctions took place at 630 Garden Street in the main Public 
Works Conference Room for the respective properties, with the General Services Manager 
administering the sales.  
 
The 221 West Cota property bid/auction produced one qualifying minimum bid, in the 
amount of $701,550, submitted by Sarintha Bell. Evidence of financial capability to 
complete the purchase was demonstrated and a deposit of $21,046.50 was submitted with 
the bid, as required. 
 
The 230 West Cota Street property bid/auction  produced two qualifying minimum bids; 
one for the minimum price of $695,000, and a second bid for $736,032 presented by the 
real estate agent for Ashley Nicole Mines and Brad Travis Moore. Evidence of financial 
capability to complete the purchase was demonstrated and a deposit of $22,081 was 
submitted with the highest bid, as required.    
 
The 536 Bath Street property bid/auction for did not receive a qualifying minimum bid and 
is being rescheduled for second bid/auction on April 7, 2016, with a lower minimum bid 
requirement.  
 
Financial – Escrow: 
 
Upon execution of the Purchase Agreements and Escrow Instructions by the City 
Administrator, escrows will be opened and administered by First American Title Company. 
Title insurance and escrow fees will be split between the City and the buyer. The escrow 
will also administer the payment of the seller-agent sales commissions and distribute the 
net remaining sales proceeds to the City as follows: 
 
221 West Cota Street: 
 

Gross sale amount $701,550.00 

Commission (1.5 percent to seller- agent) -$10,523.25 

One-half Title Insurance & Escrow fees (approximate) -$2,039.10 

Net proceeds to City (approximate) $688,987.65   
 



Council Agenda Report 
Introduction Of Ordinances Approving Sales Of Excess City Lands Related To The Cota 
Street Bridge Replacement Project  
April 12, 2016 
Page 4 

 

 
230 West Cota Street: 
 

Gross sale amount $736,032.00 

Commission (1.5 percent to seller-agent) -$11,040.48 

Commission (2 percent to buyer-agent) -$14,720.64 

One-half Title Insurance & Escrow fees (approximate) -$2,084.08 

Net proceeds to City (approximate) $708,186.80   
 
Upon close of escrow, and the effective date of the approving Ordinance, First American 
Title will be authorized to record the Grant Deeds for the Properties in the Official Records 
of Santa Barbara County, and the transfer of the titles will be completed. 
 
The City anticipated proceeds from the sale of these three properties and previously 
appropriated expenditures and estimated revenues from net proceeds. The appropriations 
were used to cover the remaining City funded construction match for the Cota and Mason 
Bridge Replacement Projects and a portion of the remaining City funded construction 
match for the Cabrillo Boulevard Bridge Replacement Project. Net proceeds will be 
deposited into the revenue accounts designated for sale of property for these bridge 
replacement projects.  
 
Staff recommends that Council approve the Ordinances as presented and authorize the 
City Administrator to execute the Purchase Agreements and Grant Deeds for the sale of 
the Properties, as approved to form by the City Attorney.  
 
Once the auction process is completed for the 536 Bath Street property, staff will return to 
Council with the final purchase agreement and escrow instructions. 
 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 1. Parcel Map for 221 West Cota and 536 Bath Streets 
 2. Parcel Map for 230 West Cota Street 
 3. Vicinity Map of Properties      
 
PREPARED BY: John Ewasiuk, Principal Engineer/DT/kts 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Rebecca J. Bjork, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 
 
 
 



_J 

� 
I 

I 

ATTACHMENT 1 

POR. PUEBLO LANDS 0.37-16 

6i1 
� 

I 11�1 I L / iil COTA ST iil 
Stt·.JO'ooir 

I::! ( j) '"'"' \_ ".' '\ ""',...,. I lo.iii I lo.iii I lo.iii I � J � J I .... 15J>D 

I
rotation- 4lr :JO" .. 1111�1 

�0 9@ � 

In I� 

";

i:!: I 
� 

.., I 

- 12211111: 

� I I � 

...,, ... , ...... 

iil 

I I - r - -1- 1- -

HALEY 

- Parwlll .... for lax -
- on!J, - do not - -
,,.,,.,., � or o """" bulldlt,g ...._ 

� 0_�
7 

___ J 
.. 70 1· = 100' 

� 
.si:a&l 

•26 
17@ t·r25m i;,ow I {g) QOW 

J V) tf@�@� I 
I I-

� 
(/) 

is@ ·- £..J 'I. 14@ .I la 0·�: al I g. 0 2.3 

l.i.J c t: 
0 ,,. 
l: 

12@ , ,@ ., J =:ses 20 i � � 
<'. 8 

II (8) I a i 
� &! (.) 

,_ ..... _ "'"' 
I 0� �
l:!l(11ii (a)'I � �. fZJO 

.. 70 

ST il 

I I 
G) 

l I 
City of Santa Barbara 

Assessor's Map Bk, 037-Pg, 16 

County of Santa Barbara, Calif. 
ll.l-Z4 hfD,.... pg 57 

00/00/0000 R.M. Bk. B , Pg. 501 , Tract "Subdivision of Block 231" � 1a1-.12 Mel ,,,__. a :n 
un-u ttto uu-.111 a .J1J 
1er-a twnmDw" • rtt-«1 

221 W. Cota (2)  and 536 
Bath (1)



_J 

'Ir' �:; 

i 

II) 

:r:....

PUEBLO LANDS 

�--�'�---� 
l 
! 

ORTEGA 

,,. 00 

i 
� 

@ ,,,, -·

--

Y2 

�;1 
'>eJ (I 

--

i 
. 

i � '@ .,._ 

.. _ f®

213 ® 
(!_§) 

)@ 

@ 

0 

® 1·@ (§) 

I -� \ ' .... ' ... ' ·- ' - , ·- ' -- ' 

----
@) 

COTA 

'B' 
�'..) 

,...; 
II) 

� 
> 

<( 
..J 

� 

[ 
'16' �v

ST. 

-- ,I_I 
--- "' "' --- 51,p 

171! 

I _Y;_IV_'lf 20 � 
. 

/9 : 
. 

l HJ 

� ,� 9)j � �(4) 2 f 
3' �l� ® @

32 

I , ---
' 30 I 

-----i.;;---

:@ 
: I 
; n I 2s I 

I 
I 
. 

® 23 

0 24 
111,0.I' 

/3 I 6 

--------

� Ii ,2 ®*®
--

;- ij 

25 l (Q -- ,--

@ i � i .@ @' 
. 

I (Q • I 
27 :26 i" /0 

I ' 
9 I 8 

I 

I 
I 

.. -�· I -- I '.1?99 1- adoo J•o 

ST. 

I I i� l [ l 
" ::,. 

;z q 

II) 

<( 
..J 

L 

i 

ATTACHMENT 2 

37-12

/./ 
/°;_ 

'13'��

Assessor's Map Bl<. 37 - Pg. 12

County of Santa Barbara, Calif. 
N:JTE • Assessor� Bloc• Numbers Shown ,n Ellipses 

Assesso,15 Parcel Numbers Shown ,n Cucles 
® "1 ,., ,, ,_. /P·U, 

230 W. Cota



536 Bath Street 

230 W. Cota Street 

221 W. Cota Street 

221, 230 W. Cota Street and 536 Bath Street Excess Properties for Sale ATT 3



ORDINANCE NO.______________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF SANTA BARBARA APPROVING AND 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR TO 
EXECUTE THE LAND PURCHASE AGREEMENT,  
ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS, AND GRANT DEED 
FOR THE SALE OF CERTAIN CITY EXCESS LAND, 
LOCATED AT 221 WEST COTA STREET, TO 
SARINTHA BELL IN THE AMOUNT OF $701,550   
 

WHEREAS, at its meeting of April 9, 2013, the City Council approved by 
adoption of resolution the property acquisitions for 221 West Cota and 536 Bath 
Streets related to the Cota Street Bridge Replacement Project;   
 
WHEREAS, at its meeting of July 14, 2015, the City Council declared the 
properties at 221 and 230 West Cota Street, and 536 Bath Street to be excess to 
the City’s needs and subject to disposal by public auction, and to negotiate final 
terms in accordance with the Santa Barbara City Charter Section 520 and 
Chapter 4.28 of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code subject to the review and 
approval by the City Attorney; 
 
WHEREAS, on March 22, 2016, the City of Santa Barbara has duly noticed and 
conducted a public auction in the City Public Works Main Conference Room, 630 
Garden Street, pursuant to Santa Barbara Municipal Code Chapter 4.28; 
  
WHEREAS, Sarintha Bell, having been the successful bidder at said auction, has 
executed and delivered a Land Purchase Agreement and Escrow Instructions for 
the purchase of said excess City land; and  
 
WHEREAS, City Charter Section 520 requires the approval of the disposal of this 
excess City land by Council’s adoption of an approving ordinance.  
             
NOW THEREFORE, THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 
           SECTION 1.  That the City Administrator is authorized to execute the 
Land Purchase Agreement, Escrow Instructions, and any related documents, 
including Grant Deed, between the City of Santa Barbara and Sarintha Bell, 
pertaining to the sale of certain City excess land located at 221 West Cota Street, 
is hereby approved; 
 
           SECTION 2.  That upon the successful completion of escrow, and upon 
the effective date of this Ordinance, First American Title Co. Inc., is authorized to 
record the Grant Deed for said excess City land in the Official Records, in the 
office of the County Recorder, Santa Barbara County; and  

 
SECTION 3. That this Ordinance shall be subject to referendum. 



1 
 

ORDINANCE NO.______________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF SANTA BARBARA APPROVING AND 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR TO 
EXECUTE THE LAND PURCHASE AGREEMENT,  
ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS, AND GRANT DEED 
FOR THE SALE OF CERTAIN CITY EXCESS LAND, 
LOCATED AT 230 WEST COTA STREET, TO 
ASHLEY NICOLE MINES AND BRAD TRAVIS 
MOORE IN THE AMOUNT OF $736,032   
 

WHEREAS, at its meeting of July 16, 2013, the City Council approved by 
adoption of resolution the property acquisitions for 230 West Cota Street related 
to the Cota Street Bridge Replacement Project;   
 
WHEREAS, at its meeting of July 14, 2015, the City Council declared the 
properties at 221 and 230 West Cota Street, and 536 Bath Street to be excess to 
the City’s needs and subject to disposal by public auction, and to negotiate final 
terms in accordance with the Santa Barbara City Charter Section 520 and 
Chapter 4.28 of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code subject to the review and 
approval by the City Attorney; 
 
WHEREAS, on March 23, 2016, the City of Santa Barbara has duly noticed and 
conducted a public auction in the City Public Works Main Conference Room, 630 
Garden Street, pursuant to Santa Barbara Municipal Code Chapter 4.28; 
  
WHEREAS, Ashley Nicole Mines and Brad Travis Moore, having been the 
successful bidders at said auction, have executed and delivered a Land 
Purchase Agreement and Escrow Instructions for the purchase of said excess 
City land; and  
 
WHEREAS, City Charter Section 520 requires the approval of the disposal of this 
excess City land by Council’s adoption of an approving ordinance.  
             
NOW THEREFORE, THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 
            SECTION 1.    That the City Administrator is authorized to execute the 
Land Purchase Agreement, Escrow Instructions, and any related documents, 
including Grant Deed, between the City of Santa Barbara and Ashley Nicole 
Mines and Brad Travis Moore, pertaining to the sale of certain City excess land 
located at 230 West Cota Street; 
 
 



2 
 

           SECTION 2.   That upon the successful completion of escrow, and upon 
the effective date of this Ordinance, First American Title Co. Inc., is authorized to 
record the Grant Deed for said excess City land in the Official Records, in the 
office of the County Recorder, Santa Barbara County; and  

 
SECTION 3.  That this Ordinance shall be subject to referendum. 



Agenda Item No.  8 
File Code No.  520.02 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 

AGENDA DATE: April 12, 2016 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Chief’s Staff, Police Department 
 
SUBJECT: Agreement With The County Of Santa Barbara For Mobile Crisis And 

Recovery Emergency Services 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council approve, and authorize the City Administrator to execute, a three-year 
agreement with the County of Santa Barbara for mobile Crisis And Recovery 
Emergency Services (CARES) to the City of Santa Barbara for Fiscal Year 2016 
through Fiscal Year 2018, for an amount not to exceed $62,521 in Fiscal Year 2016, 
$64,084 in Fiscal Year 2017, and $65,686 in Fiscal Year 2018.   
  
DISCUSSION: 
 
This three year agreement is for the continuation of mobile crisis and recovery services 
within the City of Santa Barbara on a 24-hour/seven-day-week basis.  These mobile 
services provide emergency mental health evaluation and assessment to individuals 
suffering psychiatric distress.  The service provided by the County greatly assists City 
police officers in making the required psychiatric assessments in the field per State 
Welfare and Institutions Code (WIC) §5150.  This Code section has recently been 
amended requiring police officers and other authorities to consider a person's mental 
health history and not just current actions when deciding whether to take the person into 
custody on a forced 72-hour psychiatric hold, which causes a greater need for these 
services. 
  
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
The cost in Fiscal Year 2016 will be $62,521, which will be funded from existing 
appropriations in the Police Department’s General Fund budget.  The City may 
terminate this agreement with the County upon 30 days written notice. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Agreement With The County Of Santa Barbara For Mobile Crsis And Recovery 
Emergency Services 
April 12, 2016 
Page 2 

 

 
A copy of the contract/agreement is available for public review in the City Clerk’s Office. 
 
PREPARED BY: Frank Mannix, Deputy Chief of Police 
 
SUBMITTED BY: John Crombach, Chief of Police 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



Agenda Item No. 9 
 

File Code No.  160.06 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE:  April 12, 2016 
 
TO:    Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM:   Parks and Recreation Department 
 
SUBJECT:  Records Destruction For Parks and Recreation Department 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of 
Santa Barbara Relating to the Destruction of Records Held by the Parks and Recreation 
Department in the Administration, Parks, and Recreation Divisions. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The City Council adopted Resolution No. 16-005 on February 9, 2016, approving the 
City of Santa Barbara Records Management Policies and Procedures Manual.  The 
Manual contains the records retention and disposition schedules for all City 
departments.  The schedules are a comprehensive listing of records created or 
maintained by the City, the length of time each record should be retained, and the legal 
retention authority.  If no legal retention authority is cited, the retention period is based 
on standard records management practice. 
 
Pursuant to the Manual, the Parks and Recreation Director submitted a request for 
records destruction to the City Clerk Services Manager to obtain written consent from 
the City Attorney.  The City Clerk Services Manager agreed that the list of records 
proposed for destruction conformed to the retention and disposition schedules.  The 
City Attorney has consented in writing to the destruction of the proposed records. 
 
The Parks and Recreation Director requests the City Council to approve the destruction 
of the Parks and Recreation Department records in the Administration, Parks, and 
Recreation Divisions listed on Exhibit A of the proposed Resolution, without retaining a 
copy. 
 
 
 
 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Records Destruction For Parks and Recreation Department 
April 12, 2016 
Page 2 

 

 
 
SUSTAINABILITY IMPACT:   
 
Under the City's sustainability program, one of the City's goals is to increase recycling 
efforts and divert waste from landfills.  The Citywide Records Management Program 
outlines that records approved for destruction be recycled, reducing paper waste. 
 
 
PREPARED BY: Teasha Blackman, Executive Assistant 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Jill E. Zachary, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator's Office 



 1 

RESOLUTION NO.  
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA RELATING TO THE DESTRUCTION OF 
RECORDS HELD BY THE PARKS AND RECREATION 
DEPARTMENT IN THE ADMINISTRATION, PARKS, AND 
RECREATION DIVISIONS 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 16-005 on February 9, 2016, 
approving the City of Santa Barbara Records Management Policies and Procedures 
Manual; 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Santa Barbara Records Management Policies and Procedures 
Manual contains the records retention and disposition schedules for all City 
departments.  The records retention and disposition schedules are a comprehensive 
listing of records created or maintained by the City, the length of time each record 
should be retained, and the legal retention authority.  If no legal retention authority is 
cited, the retention period is based on standard records management practice; 
 
WHEREAS, Government Code section 34090 provides that, with the approval of the 
City Council and the written consent of the City Attorney, the head of a City department 
may destroy certain city records, documents, instruments, books or papers under the 
Department Head’s charge, without making a copy, if the records are no longer needed; 
 
WHEREAS, the Parks and Recreation Director submitted a request for the destruction 
of records held by the Parks and Recreation Department to the City Clerk Services 
Manager to obtain written consent from the City Attorney.  A list of the records, 
documents, instruments, books or papers proposed for destruction is attached hereto as 
Exhibit A and shall hereafter be referred to collectively as the “Records”; 
 
WHEREAS, the Records do not include any records affecting title to real property or 
liens upon real property, court records, records required to be kept by statute, records 
less than two years old, video or audio recordings that are evidence in any claim or 
pending litigation, or the minutes, ordinances or resolutions of the City Council or any 
City board or commission; 
 
WHEREAS, the City Clerk Services Manager agrees that the proposed destruction 
conforms to the City’s retention and disposition schedules; 
 
WHEREAS, the City Attorney consents to the destruction of the Records; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Santa Barbara finds and determines that the 
Records are no longer required and may be destroyed. 
 
 



 2 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA 
BARBARA that the Parks and Recreation Director, or her designated representative, is 
authorized and directed to destroy the Records without retaining a copy. 



EXHIBIT A 

 

PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT 
 

ADMINISTRATION DIVISION 
 

Records Series Date(s) 
Administrative Staff Meeting Agendas and Minutes 2013 
Contracts and Agreements 2010 
Correspondence 2013 
Membership in Associations, Societies, and 
Committees 

2009 

Personnel Files 2016 
Staff Working Papers 2006 - 2012 
Travel Expense Records 2008 

 
PARKS DIVISION 

Records Series Date(s) 
Park Ranger Incident Reports 3/1/12 - 2/28/13 
Correspondence 3/1/13 – 2/28/14 

 
RECREATION DIVISION 

 
Records Series Date(s) 
Active Adults 
Contracts and Agreements July 2010 - June 2011 
Credit Card Transaction Records July 2013 - June 2014 
Recreation Program Files  

Registration July 2010 - June 2011 
Independent Contractor/Instructor July 2010 - June 2011 
Membership  2010 
Facility Maintenance and Inspection  July 2008 - June 2009 

Arts And Crafts Show Files  
Routine Administrative Records July 2013 - June 2014 
Applications and Permits July 2010 - June 2011 

 
Aquatics   
Credit Card Transaction Records July 2011 – June 2013 
Recreation Program Files  

Accounting Records July 2011 - June 2013 
Registration July 2009 - June 2010 
Independent Contractor/Instructor July 2008 - June 2010 

Aquatics Facilities Files July 2007 - June 2010 
 



EXHIBIT A 

 

Records Series Date(s) 
 

Facilities & Special Events 
Field and Facility Rental and Registration Files 2010 
Special Events Files 2008 

 

Neighborhood & Outreach Services 
Credit Card Transaction Records 2012 - 2014 
General Administrative Files 2014 
Leases 2006 - 2008 
Personnel Files 2013 
Recreation Program Files  

Membership 2009 - 2010 
Accounting Records 2009 - 2013 
Registration 2007 - 2010  
Routine administrative records 2009 - 2015 

Field and Facility Rental and Reservation Files  
Applications and Permits 2004 – 2007 
Other Materials 2004 - 2013 

 

Tennis Section 
Recreation Program Files   

Registration Fiscal Year 2010 
Independent Contractor/Instructor Fiscal Year 2010 

 

Youth Activities 
Recreation Program Files   

Registration 2010 
Staff Training Records 2002-2003 

Special Events Files 2009-2013 
 

Sports 
Recreation Program Files   
 Registration 2009-2010 
Personnel Files 2009-2014 

 



Agenda Item No.  10 
 

File Code No.  160.06 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE:  April 12, 2016 
 
TO:    Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM:   Administration Division, Finance Department 
 
SUBJECT:  Records Destruction For Finance Department 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of 
Santa Barbara Relating to the Destruction of Records Held by the Finance Department 
in the Accounting, Administration, General Services, Risk Management, and Treasury 
Divisions. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The City Council adopted Resolution No. 16-005 on February 9, 2016, approving the 
City of Santa Barbara Records Management Policies and Procedures Manual.  The 
Manual contains the records retention and disposition schedules for all City 
departments.  The schedules are a comprehensive listing of records created or 
maintained by the City, the length of time each record should be retained, and the legal 
retention authority.  If no legal retention authority is cited, the retention period is based 
on standard records management practice. 
 
Pursuant to the Manual, the Finance Director submitted a request for records 
destruction to the City Clerk Services Manager to obtain written consent from the City 
Attorney.  The City Clerk Services Manager agreed that the list of records proposed for 
destruction conformed to the retention and disposition schedules.  The City Attorney 
has consented in writing to the destruction of the proposed records. 
 
The Finance Director requests the City Council to approve the destruction of the 
Finance Department records in the Accounting, Administration, General Services, Risk 
Management, and Treasury Divisions listed on Exhibit A of the proposed Resolution, 
without retaining a copy. 
 
 
 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Records Destruction For Finance Department 
April 12, 2016 
Page 2 

 

 
 
SUSTAINABILITY IMPACT:   
 
Under the City's sustainability program, one of the City's goals is to increase recycling 
efforts and divert waste from landfills.  The Citywide Records Management Program 
outlines that records approved for destruction be recycled, reducing paper waste. 
 
 
PREPARED BY: Jennifer Dixon, Executive Assistant 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Robert Samario, Finance Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator's Office 



 1 

RESOLUTION NO.  
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA RELATING TO THE DESTRUCTION OF 
RECORDS HELD BY THE FINANCE DEPARTMENT IN 
THE ACCOUNTING, ADMINISTRATION, GENERAL 
SERVICES, RISK MANAGEMENT, AND TREASURY 
DIVISIONS 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 16-005 on February 9, 2016, 
approving the City of Santa Barbara Records Management Policies and Procedures 
Manual; 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Santa Barbara Records Management Policies and Procedures 
Manual contains the records retention and disposition schedules for all City 
departments.  The records retention and disposition schedules are a comprehensive 
listing of records created or maintained by the City, the length of time each record 
should be retained, and the legal retention authority.  If no legal retention authority is 
cited, the retention period is based on standard records management practice; 
 
WHEREAS, Government Code section 34090 provides that, with the approval of the 
City Council and the written consent of the City Attorney, the head of a City department 
may destroy certain city records, documents, instruments, books or papers under the 
Department Head’s charge, without making a copy, if the records are no longer needed; 
 
WHEREAS, the Finance Director submitted a request for the destruction of records held 
by the Finance Department to the City Clerk Services Manager to obtain written consent 
from the City Attorney.  A list of the records, documents, instruments, books or papers 
proposed for destruction is attached hereto as Exhibit A and shall hereafter be referred 
to collectively as the “Records”; 
 
WHEREAS, the Records do not include any records affecting title to real property or 
liens upon real property, court records, records required to be kept by statute, records 
less than two years old, video or audio recordings that are evidence in any claim or 
pending litigation, or the minutes, ordinances or resolutions of the City Council or any 
City board or commission; 
 
WHEREAS, the City Clerk Services Manager agrees that the proposed destruction 
conforms to the City’s retention and disposition schedules; 
 
WHEREAS, the City Attorney consents to the destruction of the Records; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Santa Barbara finds and determines that the 
Records are no longer required and may be destroyed. 
 
 



 2 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA 
BARBARA that the Finance Director, or his designated representative, is authorized and 
directed to destroy the Records without retaining a copy. 



 

 

EXHIBIT A 
 

FINANCE DEPARTMENT 
 

ACCOUNTING DIVISION 
 

Accounting Reports        2008 

Bank Reconciliations       2008 

Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Files    2010  

General Ledger Journal Vouchers     2008 

Trial Balance Reports       2008 

Utility Billing & Accounts Receivable     2008 

W-2 Forms         2000 and earlier 

Year-End Reports        2008 

 

 
ADMINISTRATION DIVISION 

 
 
Credit Card Transaction Records      2009 
 

 
GENERAL SERVICES 

 

Bids           2005 

Central Stores Supplies Inventory      2007 - 2010 

Purchase Orders        2008 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
RISK MANAGEMENT 

Contracts and Agreements       2008 and earlier 

Travel Expense Records       2008 and earlier 

Cal OSHA Compliance Program Records    2008 and earlier 

Financial Files        2013 and earlier 

Fix-It Files         2011 and earlier 

Incident Files         2010 and earlier 

Liability Files         2010 and earlier 

Litigation Files        2010 and earlier 
 
 

TREASURY 
 

Credit Card Transaction Records      2013 

Automatic Payment Service Applications and Agreements  2013 

Broker Files         2008 

Business License and Utility User’s Tax Batch Files   2010 

Cash Receipt Records       2008 

Investment Files        2005 

Licenses and Permits Subject File     2010 

“MBIA” Audit Files        2010 

Parking and Business Improvement Area Tax Files   2012 

Transient Occupancy Tax Files      2010 

Treasury Receipts        2010 

Utility Tax Exemption Renewal Applications    2012 

Water Payment Records (Stubs)      2014 



Agenda Item No.  11 
 

File Code No.  530.04 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: April 12, 2016 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Engineering Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Resolution To Vacate An Offer Of Pedestrian Easement At 109 West 

Ortega Street 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council:   
 
A. Find that the subject Irrevocable Offer of a Pedestrian Easement is not necessary 

for public purposes; and 
 

B.  Adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of Santa 
Barbara Ordering the Summary Vacation of the Irrevocable Offer of a Pedestrian 
Easement Over a Portion of the Real Property Commonly Known As 109 West 
Ortega Street (APN 037-123-002), as Described in Said Irrevocable Offer. 

 
DISCUSSION: 
 
In 1984, Robert Hansen and his wife Bertha Hansen acquired the real property located 
at 631 Chapala Street (Chapala Property) and 109 West Ortega Street (Ortega 
Property).  The two lots are adjacent to one another and share a common property line 
(see Attachment 1).   
 
Shortly after acquiring the properties, the Hansens proposed an improvement to the 
Chapala Property, which was being used as a commercial building and was accessible 
to the public.  In connection with the proposed improvement, City Building and Safety 
staff determined that the Hansens should provide pedestrian access to the rear of the 
Chapala Property in anticipation that it may be needed for public access in relation to 
the commercial use of the property. The Hansens proposed the access easement to be 
established over the Ortega Property, which they also owned. 
 
In order to ensure that the pedestrian access to the rear of the Chapala Property would 
remain available for potential future use, even if the Ortega Property were sold to a 
separate owner, the City required the Hansens to issue an Irrevocable Offer of a 
Pedestrian Easement over the Ortega Property.   
 



Council Agenda Report 
Resolution To Vacate An Offer Of Pedestrian Easement At 109 West Ortega Street 
April 12, 2016 
Page 2 

 

 
The irrevocable offer proposed the dedication of a ten-foot-wide public easement over 
the Ortega Property in order to provide pedestrian access to the rear of the Chapala 
Property. 
 
The City has never accepted the offer of the pedestrian easement, so the public use 
was, in fact, not needed as originally anticipated.  
 
In 2014, both properties were sold by the Hansen Family Trust to 631 Chapala, LLC.  
Later that year, 631 Chapala, LLC, sold the Ortega Property to Cindy Jackson.  As part 
of the sale, 631 Chapala, LLC, reserved a private pedestrian easement over the Ortega 
Property to provide the property owner pedestrian access from Ortega Street to the rear 
of the Chapala Property.  These reservations were formalized and recorded in a Grant 
of Easements and Declaration of Covenants recorded on June 23, 2015, as Instrument 
Number 2015-0032580 in the Official Records of the County of Santa Barbara. 
 
Conclusion 
 
Staff from the Public Works Department and the Community Development Department 
have reviewed the pedestrian easement that was granted in the 2015 Grant of 
Easements and Declaration of Covenants.  City staff believe the pedestrian easement 
provides the necessary private pedestrian access to the rear of the Chapala Property 
and that the public easement offered as a requirement for permitting of the 1984 
improvements to the Chapala Property, but never accepted by the City, is not of public 
benefit or necessity.   
 
Based on the limited scope offered in the Irrevocable Offer of a Pedestrian Easement 
(i.e., pedestrian access from Ortega Street serving only the Chapala Property), and the 
actions by the Chapala Property owners to preserve private pedestrian easement 
access, staff does not see any need of a future recommendation to accept the offer as a 
public pedestrian easement. Therefore, staff recommends that Council find that the 
subject Irrevocable Offer of a Pedestrian Easement is not necessary for public purposes, 
and adopt the proposed resolution summarily vacating the Irrevocable Offer of a 
Pedestrian Easement and authorize staff to record the proposed resolution. 
 
 
ATTACHMENT:    Aerial Map of Parcels 
  
PREPARED BY:  Adam Hendel, Acting Principal Engineer/DT/kts 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Rebecca J. Bjork, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 
 



Aerial Map for 631 Chapala and 109 W. Ortega Streets; Pedestrian Easement                       Attachment



RECORDING REQUESTED BY   ) 
AND WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO:  ) 
       ) 
City of Santa Barbara    ) 
Public Works, Att: Real Property   ) 
P.O. Box 1990     ) 
Santa Barbara, CA  93102-1990   ) 
       ) 
       )  No fee per STS & HWY CODE 8325  
          Space above line for Recorder's Use  
 
 RESOLUTION NO. _____ 
 
   A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA ORDERING THE 
SUMMARY VACATION OF THE 
IRREVOCABLE OFFER OF A PEDESTRIAN 
EASEMENT OVER A PORTION OF THE REAL 
PROPERTY COMMONLY KNOWN AS 109 
WEST ORTEGA STREET (APN 037-123-002), 
AS DESCRIBED IN SAID IRREVOCABLE 
OFFER 

 
WHEREAS, in 1984, Robert and Bertha Hansen acquired two adjacent parcels located 
at 631 Chapala Street (Chapala Property) and 109 West Ortega Street (Ortega 
Property);   
 
WHEREAS, in 1984, the Hansens proposed an improvement to the Chapala Property;   
 
WHEREAS, in connection with the proposed improvement of the Chapala Property, the 
City required the Hansens to provide pedestrian access to the rear of the Chapala 
Property from West Ortega Street.  The Hansens offered this access over the Ortega 
Property, which they owned; 
 
WHEREAS, in order to ensure that the pedestrian access to the rear of the Chapala 
Property would remain, even if the Ortega Property were sold to a separate owner, the 
City required the Hansens to issue to the City an Irrevocable Offer of a Pedestrian 
Easement over the Ortega Property; 
 
WHEREAS, the Irrevocable Offer of a Pedestrian Easement was recorded in the Official 
Records of the County of Santa Barbara as Instrument Number 1984-054549. The 
irrevocable offer proposed the dedication of a ten-foot wide public easement over the 
Ortega Property in order to provide pedestrian access to the rear of the Chapala 
Property; 
 
WHEREAS, in January 2014, the Chapala Property and the Ortega Property were sold 
by the Hansen Family Trust to 631 Chapala, LLC; 



 
WHEREAS, in 2014, 631 Chapala, LLC, sold the Ortega Property to Cindy Jackson.  As 
part of the sale of the Ortega Property to Ms. Jackson, 631 Chapala, LLC, reserved a 
pedestrian easement over the Ortega Property in favor of the Chapala Property in order 
to maintain the required pedestrian access from Ortega Street to the rear of the 
Chapala Property.  These reservations were formalized and recorded in a Grant of 
Easements and Declaration of Covenants recorded on June 23, 2015, as Instrument 
Number 2015-0032580 in the Official Records of the County of Santa Barbara; 
 
WHEREAS, the recordation of the Grant of Easements and Declaration of Covenants 
made the prior recorded Irrevocable Offer of a Pedestrian Easement unnecessary; and 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 8335 of the California Streets and Highways Code the 
City Council finds and declares: 
 

1. The vacation of the Irrevocable Offer of a Pedestrian Easement is made 
pursuant to Division 9, Part 3, Chapter 4 of the Streets and Highways Code of the State 
of California; 

2. The summary vacation of the Irrevocable Offer of a Pedestrian Easement 
is made and is necessary for the reasons set forth above; and 
3. Upon the recordation of this Resolution, the Irrevocable Offer of a Pedestrian 
Easement shall be vacated and extinguished. 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA 
BARBARA AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1. The City of Santa Barbara hereby summarily vacates the Irrevocable Offer 
of a Pedestrian Easement attached hereto as Exhibit A pursuant to the authority 
granted in Streets and Highways Code Section 8335. 
 
SECTION 2. The City Council approves the summary vacation of the Irrevocable Offer 
of a Pedestrian Easement for the following reasons: 
 

1. The above findings are true and correct. 
  

2. The pedestrian easement is not necessary for the present or prospective public 
purposes. 

 
3. The Grant of Easements and Declaration of Covenants recorded on June 23, 

2015, as Instrument Number 2015-0032580 in the Official Records of the County 
of Santa Barbara adequately addresses the access requirements for the Chapala 
Property. 

 
SECTION 3. The City Clerk shall cause a certified copy of this Resolution to be duly 
attested and recorded in the Office of the County Recorder of the County of Santa 
Barbara. 

 



Agenda Item No.  12 
 

File Code No.  540.01 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 
 
 

 
AGENDA DATE: April 12, 2016 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Facilities Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Contract For Construction Of Water Distribution Office Improvements 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council award a contract with Tomar Construction, Inc., in their low bid amount of 
$48,937, for modernization of the Water Distribution Office, Bid No. 3807; and authorize 
the Public Works Director to execute the contract and approve expenditures up to 
$4,894 to cover any cost increases that may result from contract change orders for 
extra work, and differences between estimated bid quantities and actual quantities 
measured for payment. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Project Description 
 
The Public Works Water Distribution Building at 625 Laguna Street, which provides 
office space, meeting space, locker rooms, and a multi-use break room for City 
employees, currently lacks modern facilities, such as a sink. The Water Distribution 
Office Improvements Project will renovate an existing closet in the multi-use break room 
to provide a new kitchenette with new cabinetry, plumbing, and architectural finishes. 
The Project will also provide an American with Disabilities Act compliant entrance and 
sanitary sewer improvements.  
 
Contract Bids 
 

BIDDER BID AMOUNT 
  
1. Tomar Construction, Incorporated 

Santa Paula, CA  
 

$48,937 

2. Jeff Ploutz Construction, Incorporated 
Santa Maria, CA 

$50,968 

 



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For Construction Of Water Distribution Office Improvements 
April 12, 2016 
Page 2  

 

The low bid of $48,937, submitted by Tomar Construction, Inc., is an acceptable bid that 
is responsive to and meets the requirements of the bid specifications. The change order 
funding recommendation of $4,894, or 10 percent, is typical for this type of work and 
size of project.   
 
Funding 
 
The following summarizes all Project design costs, construction contract funding, and 
other Project costs: 
 

ESTIMATED TOTAL PROJECT COST 
*Cents have been rounded to the nearest dollar in this table.   

 

Design: City Staff Costs $4,017 
 Subtotal $4,017 

Construction Contract   $48,937 
Construction Change Order Allowance $4,894 

Subtotal $53,831
 City Staff: Construction Management, Inspection $2,678 

Other Construction Costs (Permit, Materials Procurement) $3,613 
 Subtotal $6,291 

TOTAL PROJECT COST $64,139 
 
There are sufficient appropriated funds in the Water and Streets budgets for this 
Project.  
 
 
PREPARED BY: Jim Dewey, Facilities and Energy Manager/BK/mh 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Rebecca J. Bjork, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 
 
 
 



Agenda Item No.  13 
 

File Code No.  530.01 
 

 

 CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 
 
 

 
AGENDA DATE: April 12, 2016 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Engineering Division, Public Work Department 
 
SUBJECT: Measure A Five-Year Local Program Of Projects For Fiscal Years 

2017 – 2021 Public Hearing 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of Santa 
Barbara Adopting the Measure A Five-Year Local Program of Projects for Fiscal Years 
2017 – 2021. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Background 
 
In November 2008, Santa Barbara County voters approved Measure A with 79 percent 
support. Measure A is a sales tax measure estimated to provide approximately $1 billion 
of local sales tax revenues for transportation projects in Santa Barbara County over the 
30 year life of the measure. Measure A is funded through a continuation of the local 1/2 
percent sales tax that was originally authorized by Measure D, which expired on March 
31, 2010. Measure A contains a strategic spending plan that includes regional projects, 
as well as local programs and projects that are funded by monthly population based 
allocations to each local agency. The Measure A Ordinance requires the City to 
annually submit a Five-Year Local Program of Projects to the administrating agency, 
Santa Barbara County Association of Governments (SBCAG). 
 
Measure A replaced the now expired 1989 Measure D sales tax measure. Under 
Measure D, the City contributed funds to support the Santa Barbara Metropolitan 
Transit District (MTD). Under Measure A, MTD now receives Measure A funds directly; 
however, the City continues to provide funding support to the Easy Lift and Electric 
Shuttle Programs. 
 
A key component of Measure A is the plan to relieve traffic congestion and improve 
safety on Highway 101 by providing $140 million in matching funds to widen the 
highway south of the Hot Springs Road / Cabrillo Boulevard interchange from four to six 
lanes.  



Council Agenda Report 
Measure A Five-Year Local Program Of Projects For Fiscal Years 2017 – 2021 Public 
Hearing  
April 12, 2016 
Page 2 

 

 
Measure A Investment Plan 
 
The Measure A Investment Plan (Plan) will provide $455 million each to both the Santa 
Barbara North County and the South Coast for high priority transportation projects and 
programs to address the current and future needs of local communities. The local 
revenues will be supplemented by an estimated $522 million in federal and state gas 
taxes, as well as other sources.  
 
The Plan provides funding for local street improvements such as pavement 
maintenance and synchronized traffic signals, increased senior and disabled 
accessibility to public transit, building safer walking and bike routes to schools, and 
increased opportunities for carpool and vanpool programs. 
 
Local Program of Projects 
 
The SBCAG estimate for Measure A City revenues for Fiscal Year 2016 was 
approximately $3.64 million. SBCAG has estimated that the City will receive approximately 
$3.63 million in Measure A revenues for Fiscal Year 2017. Under Measure A, local 
agencies choose how to spend their share of funds after annually adopting a Five-Year 
Program of Projects. Measure A contains funds for local street and transportation 
improvements (capital projects and maintenance/operations), and Alternative 
Transportation (pedestrian/bicycle improvements, Safe Routes to School, and transit 
assistance). 
 
It is a Measure A Ordinance requirement for local agencies to spend a minimum of 10 
percent of the Local Street and Transportation Improvement funds on eligible alternative 
transportation projects. It is calculated cumulatively and must be met by the fifth year of the 
Measure A Program, and every fifth year thereafter. Fiscal Year 2016 is the first year of 
the next five-year period. In Fiscal Year 2016, the City is expected to achieve 38 percent 
Alternative Transportation expenditures. The proposed Fiscal Year 2017 Program of 
Projects reflects 40 percent Alternative Transportation expenditures. 
 
The Measure A Ordinance also requires local agencies to annually maintain an 
expenditure of non-measure “local discretionary funds” for street and road purposes 
adjusted annually by the rate of growth (or decline) of measure revenues. This is to 
ensure that the legislature’s intent, that local transportation sales taxes supplement 
rather than supplant local transportation investments, is met. Measure D contained a 
similar “Maintenance of Effort” (MOE) requirement. There are three requirements for 
local agencies regarding MOE: 1) an annual requirement that each agency certify that it 
will meet the MOE minimum expenditure requirement; 2) an annual requirement that 
each agency report its local discretionary expenditures for streets and roads to the State 
Controller’s Office; and 3) a requirement that each agency show that it met the MOE 
requirement for every five year period and that this be verified through annual fiscal 
audits.  
 



Council Agenda Report 
Measure A Five-Year Local Program Of Projects For Fiscal Years 2017 – 2021 Public 
Hearing  
April 12, 2016 
Page 3 

 

The City exceeded the first five-year period requirement; however, it will be challenging to 
meet the next five-year requirement because City revenues from the Utility User Tax are 
not projected to increase at the same rate as the projected Measure A revenues. 
 
Under Measure A, local agencies can apply for Measure A grant funds for local 
transportation projects. In 2012, the City received approval for $435,004 of Measure A 
grant funds for seven City projects. In 2013, the City received approval for $763,141 for 
seven City projects. In March 2016, the City received Measure A grant approval in the 
amount of $1,223,987 for three projects. (See Attachment 1 for the list of City Measure A 
grant fund projects.) 
 
With Council's approval of the recommended Resolution, this report will satisfy the 
Measure A requirement that the local agency hold an annual public hearing on its Program 
of Projects prior to submittal and adoption by SBCAG. 
 
The proposed Measure A Five-Year Local Program of Projects is separated into two 
categories: Local Street and Transportation Improvements, and Alternative Transportation 
Expenditures. The proposed Local Program of Projects for Fiscal Year 2017 is consistent 
with the adopted two-year Fiscal Year 2016-2017 Financial Plan budget. Additionally, 
maintenance of existing public right of way infrastructure and safety are the highest 
priorities of the Streets Capital Improvement Program. (See Attachment 2 for the Measure 
A Proposed City of Santa Barbara Program of Projects by Category for Fiscal Years 2017 
– 2021). 
 
The City must annually adopt a Resolution and submit a revised Local Program of Projects 
to SBCAG in accordance with the Measure A local allocation rules. The proposed City 
Measure A expenditure plan is reflected in the proposed City Streets Fund budget for 
Fiscal Year 2017.  
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 1. City Measure A Grant Fund Projects 

2. Measure A Proposed City of Santa Barbara Program of 
Projects by Category Fiscal Year 2017 – Fiscal Year 2021 

 
PREPARED BY: John Ewasiuk, Principal Civil Engineer/sk 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Rebecca J. Bjork, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 



Attachment 1 
 

 

City Measure A Grant Fund Projects 
 
Measure A Fund Cycle 1 grant projects were approved on January 19, 2012, and included the 
following completed projects: 
 

Project Name Total Project 
Cost Estimate 

Measure A 
Share 

Local 
Share 

Goleta Slough Bridge Surface Repair $120,000 $96,000 $24,000 
CycleMAYnia/Bike Challenge/Bike to Work Day $36,000 $22,000 $14,000 
Santa Barbara Transit Center Bikestation Module $150,000 $120,000 $30,000 
Cleveland School Pedestrian Improvements $271,000 $46,000 $225,000 
La Colina Sidewalk $355,676 $111,004 $244,672 
McKinley School Sidewalk $50,000 $30,000 $20,000 
Santa Barbara School Bicycle Racks $10,000 $10,000 $0 

TOTAL $992,676 $435,004 $557,672 
 
Measure A Cycle 2 grant projects were approved on March 12, 2013, and included the following 
projects: 
 

Project Name Total Project 
Cost Estimate 

Measure A 
Share 

Local 
Share 

Upper De La Vina Pedestrian Crossing Enhancements $208,370 $103,870 $104,500 
North La Cumbre Road Sidewalk and Pedestrian 
Safety Improvements $444,772 $266,772 $178,000 

School Zone Pedestrian Refuge Islands $219,645 $152,645 $67,000 
Santa Barbara School Access Ramps $36,645 $22,354 $14,291 
City of Santa Barbara Bicycle Master Plan Update $200,000 $130,000 $70,000 
CycleMAYnia 2014, 2015, 2016 $58,500 $37,500 $21,000 
SBCC Bicycle Facilities Improvements $75,000 $50,000 $25,000 

TOTAL $1,242,932 $763,141 $479,791 
 
Measure A Cycle 3 grant projects were approved on March 18, 2016, and included the following 
projects: 
 

Project Name Total Project 
Cost Estimate 

Measure A 
Share 

Local 
Share* 

Green Lane Route Intersection Markings for New 
Bicycle Master Plan Spine Connections $633,540 $470,881 $162,659 

North La Cumbre Road Sidewalk and Pedestrian 
Safety Improvements – Pemm Place to La Cumbre 
Hills Lane 

$378,300 $302,640 $75,660** 

Old Coast Highway Sidewalk $826,125 $450,466 $375,659*** 
TOTAL $1,837,965 $1,223,987 $613,978 

*Final City share amounts to be finalized in Memorandum of Understanding with SBCAG 
**City share: $3,217.20; Highway Safety Improvement Program Grant share: $72,442.80 
*** City share: $249,293; Community Development Block Grant share: $126,366 



Attachment 2

City Project Category FY 17 FY 18 FY 19 FY 20 FY 21

*Local Street & Transportation 
     Capital Improvement Projects

Local Street & Transportation 

Improvements: 
     Maintenance/Operations

SUBTOTAL $2,206 $2,104 $2,198 $2,298 $2,427

*Alternative Transportation 

Expenditures
$1,422 $1,450 $1,479 $1,509 $1,539

TOTAL $3,628 $3,554 $3,677 $3,807 $3,966

(Figures in $1,000)

*See Resolution Exhibit B for Fiscal Year 2017 Measure A Project List.

*The Sidewalk Maintenance and Sidewalk Access Ramp projects are Streets Capital Improvement Projects 

that qualify as eligible Local Alternative Transportation Projects for the City's 10 percent Measure A Ordinance 

requirement.

Measure A

Proposed City of Santa Barbara Program of

Projects by Category FY 2017 - FY 2021

$1,064 $939 $1,010 $1,086 $1,191

$1,142 $1,165 $1,188 $1,212 $1,236



 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO.  
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF SANTA BARBARA ADOPTING THE MEASURE 
A FIVE-YEAR LOCAL PROGRAM OF PROJECTS 
FOR FISCAL YEARS 2017 – 2021 

 
 
WHEREAS, on November 4, 2008, the voters of Santa Barbara County approved 
the Santa Barbara County Road Repair, Traffic Relief and Transportation Safety 
measure, known as Measure A; 
 
WHEREAS, Measure A Ordinance No. 5 provides that Santa Barbara County 
Local Transportation Authority shall annually approve a Program of Projects 
submitted by local jurisdictions identifying those transportation projects eligible to 
use Measure A funds; 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Santa Barbara was provided with an estimate of annual 
Measure A local revenues for Fiscal Years 2017 through 2021; and 
 
WHEREAS, on April 12, 2016, the City of Santa Barbara held a public hearing in 
accordance with the Ordinance. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1. The City of Santa Barbara does hereby approve the Five-Year 
Program of Projects and Fiscal Year 2017 Measure A Program of Projects, to be 
funded in part with Measure A revenues (Exhibits A and B respectively). 
 
SECTION 2. The City of Santa Barbara certifies that it will include in its budget 
an amount of local discretionary funding for local streets and roads sufficient to 
comply with the Maintenance of Effort requirements contained in the Ordinance. 
 
SECTION 3. The City of Santa Barbara will not use Measure A revenues to 
replace private developer funding that has been committed to a transportation 
project or would otherwise be required under current City policies. 
 
SECTION 4. The City of Santa Barbara has complied with all other applicable 
provisions and requirements of the Ordinance. 



Exhibit A

City Project Category FY 17 FY 18 FY 19 FY 20 FY 21

*Local Street & Transportation 

Improvements: 

     Capital Improvement Projects

Local Street & Transportation 

Improvements: 

     Maintenance/Operations

SUBTOTAL $2,206 $2,104 $2,198 $2,298 $2,427

*Alternative Transportation 

Expenditures
$1,422 $1,450 $1,479 $1,509 $1,539

TOTAL $3,628 $3,554 $3,677 $3,807 $3,966

(Figures in $1,000)

*The Sidewalk Maintenance and Sidewalk Access Ramp projects are Streets Capital Improvement Projects 

that qualify as eligible Local Alternative Transportation Projects for the City's 10 percent Measure A Ordinance 

requirement.

Measure A

Proposed City of Santa Barbara Program of

Projects by Category FY 2017 - FY 2021

$1,064 $939 $1,010 $1,086 $1,191

$1,142 $1,165 $1,188 $1,212 $1,236



Exhibit B

Project Description Measure A

FY 17 Local State Federal Total Project

A. Local Street & Transportation Improvements

    1. Capital Improvement Projects

Drainage Improvements/Maintenance $50,000 $50,000

Pavement Maintenance $992,510 $0 $344,717 $1,337,227

Citywide Streetlight Repair & Maintenance $50,000 $50,000

Traffic Signal Operational Upgrades $125,000 $125,000

Traffic Safety/Capacity Improvements $50,000 $50,000

Traffic Signal Maintenance Program $75,000 $75,000

Reserves for Capital $71,946 $71,946

    2. Maintenance, Improvement or Construction of Roadways or Bridges

Roadway Maintenance $420,142 $1,259,202 $1,679,344

Storm Drain Repair and Maintenance $165,493 $287,037 $452,530

Urban Forestry Street Tree Program $976,388 $976,388

Graffiti Abatement $186,649 $186,649

Engineering Services $556,645 $0 $556,645

Traffic Engineering Operations $646,140 $646,140

Transportation Planning $982,080 $982,080

Traffic Signals $1,565,628 $1,565,628

Traffic Marking and Signage $914,492 $914,492

B. Alternative Transportation Expenditures

   1. Alternative Transportation

Easy Lift $240,786 $240,786

Shuttle Bus Program $634,598 $634,598

Bicycle Improvements $75,493 $75,493

*Sidewalk Infill Program $0 $0

*Sidewalk Access Ramps $50,000 $50,000

*Sidewalk Repair/Maintenance (Capital) $250,000 $250,000

*Sidewalk Maintenance (Operations) $246,125 $666,289 $912,414

WorkTrip $315,363 $315,363

TOTALS $3,628,245 $8,149,268 $420,210 $0 $12,197,723

City of Santa Barbara

FY 2017 Measure A Program of Projects and Local, State and Federal Funding

Non-Measure A



Agenda Item No.  14 
File Code No.  560.09 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: April 12, 2016 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Facilities Planning & Development Division, Airport Department 
 
SUBJECT: Airport Master Plan Contract Amendment For Traffic Analysis 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
That Council approve and authorize the Airport Director to execute an Amendment to 
Contract 23,903 with Coffman Associates for Preparation of additional traffic impact 
analysis for the Airport Master Plan in an amount not to exceed $14,000 for a total 
contract amount of $1,186,204. 
  
DISCUSSION: 
 
In order to understand the environmental consequences of the adoption of the Airport 
Master Plan, City Council must review a certified Environmental Impact Report (EIR) 
prepared pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA).  Staff is 
currently preparing a revision to the Draft EIR to assess the cumulative traffic impacts 
associated with Master Plan implementation.   
 
During the Draft EIR public comment period and in consultation with City of Goleta staff, 
the City received comment letters expressing concerns over the traffic analysis, 
including the cumulative projects list.  The Airport contracted with the City of Goleta’s 
traffic modelling firm to run revised traffic model assumptions. This contract amendment 
will fund traffic analysis and recommendations to address any forecasted traffic impacts 
in the revised Draft EIR.  
 
This amendment will be the third to the Airport Master Plan consultant contract originally 
awarded on October 11, 2011, for $893,959.  The first amendment was for the 
preparation of the EIR and was awarded on May 13, 2014, for $250,245.  The second 
amendment was for traffic modelling using the City of Goleta’s traffic consultant and 
was awarded on July 21, 2015, for $28,000.  
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
Funds are available in the Airport Capital Fund for Airport Master Plan Environmental 
Review. 



Council Agenda Report 
Airport Master Plan Contract Amendment For Traffic Analysis 
April 12, 2016 
Page 2 

 

 
SUSTAINABILITY IMPACT:   
 
The Airport Master Plan will guide land use at the Santa Barbara Airport consistent with 
its guiding principles and Plan Santa Barbara.  The review and disclosure of potential 
environmental impacts from Airport Master Plan implementation will enable Council to 
incorporate mitigation measures to avoid or minimize adverse effects. 
 
 
PREPARED BY: Andrew Bermond, AICP, Project Planner 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Hazel Johns, Airport Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



Agenda Item No.  15 
 

File Code No.  570.05 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE:  April 12, 2016 
 
TO:    Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Administration Division, Parks and Recreation Department 
 
SUBJECT: Contract For Construction Of The Stretch Equipment Area At The 

Andrée Clark Bird Refuge  
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council award a contract to Shaw Contracting Inc. in their low bid amount of $32,318 
for construction of the Stretch Equipment at the Bird Refuge Project, Bid No. 5435, and 
authorize the Parks and Recreation Director to execute the contract and approve 
expenditures up to $3,231 for any unanticipated work. 

 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Project Background 
 
In April 2014, the Parks and Recreation Department received a donation from Bill and 
Lorraine McIntosh to install fitness stretch equipment at the Andrée Clark Bird Refuge 
(Bird Refuge). A long-time community member and former runner, Mr. McIntosh 
expressed his desire to support active fitness in general, and the local running community, 
in particular. The Department supported his proposal, and Mr. McIntosh donated $10,000 
to the PARC Foundation for the equipment.  The PARC Foundation Board also approved 
an additional $10,000 in funds for the project.   
 
Over the course of several months, the Department researched equipment options and 
identified an appropriate location and prepared conceptual plans. The Parks and 
Recreation Commission reviewed the Project on December 14, 2014 and made findings 
pursuant to SBMC Section 28.37.025 to approve installation at the Bird Refuge.  The 
Department subsequently completed the project plans and received Historic Landmarks 
Commission approval.   
 
Project Description 
 
The Stretch Equipment at the Bird Refuge Project (Project) includes the installation of 
signage and three pieces of stretch equipment on a new concrete pad at the terminus of 
the beachway adjacent to the Bird Refuge parking lot.  Designed by Norwell Outdoor 



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For Construction Of The Stretch Equipment Area At The Andrée Clark Bird 
Refuge  
April 12, 2016 
Page 2 

 

Fitness, the equipment includes a stretch bar, hip flex unit, and an air walker.  All three 
support either general exercise or warm-up/cool down activities for runners, walkers, 
and cyclists.  In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), all pieces of 
equipment are accessible, and the Project includes improvements to the pathway, and 
accessible parking stall and ramp in the Bird Refuge parking lot.  The Project will be 
completed in June 2016. 
 
Contract Bids 
 
Seven bids were received for the subject work, as follows: 
 
 BIDDER BID AMOUNT 
1. Shaw Contracting, Inc. $32,318 
2. Central Coast Engineering $32,783 
3. EJS, Inc. $34,566 
4. Arroyo Seco Construction $35,000 
5. G. Sosa Construction, Inc.  $35,300 
6. Brough Construction, Inc. $35,764 
7. Schock Construction Corporation $56,596 
                                           
The low bid of $32,318 submitted by Shaw Contracting, Inc. is an acceptable bid that is 
responsive to and meets the requirements of the bid specifications. Staff recommends 
that the bid total of $32,318 be accepted by Council. The change order funding 
recommendation of $3,231, or 10 percent, is to cover any unanticipated work not in the 
original scope.  
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
Funding for the Project is included in the Fiscal Year 2016 Parks Infrastructure 
Improvement Capital Project and the Bird Refuge Stretch Equipment accounts.  On 
February 23, 2016, City Council accepted donations from the PARC Foundation and Bill 
and Lorraine McIntosh for a total of $20,000 to help fund the Project.  The following 
summarizes the expenditures recommended in this report: 

 
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FUNDING SUMMARY 

 
 Basic Contract Change Funds Total 
Shaw Contracting Inc. $32,318 $3,231 $35,549 

TOTAL RECOMMENDED AUTHORIZATION $35,549 
 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For Construction Of The Stretch Equipment Area At The Andrée Clark Bird 
Refuge  
April 12, 2016 
Page 3 

 

 
The following summarizes all design, construction, and other Project costs: 
 

ESTIMATED TOTAL PROJECT COST 
 
Design & Review (by City staff) $7,000 

Norwell Fitness Equipment (purchased by City) $14,316 

Subtotal $21,316 

Construction Contract  $32,318
 Construction Change Order Allowance $3,231 

Subtotal $35,549 
TOTAL PROJECT COST $56,865 

 
 
 
 
PREPARED BY: Justin Van Mullem, Associate Planner 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Jill E. Zachary, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 



Agenda Item No.  19 
 

File Code No.  540.13 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 
 
 

 
AGENDA DATE: April 12, 2016 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Water Resources Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Proposed Fiscal Year 2017 Water Rates 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: That Council: 
 
A. Hear a presentation on the proposed Fiscal Year 2017 Water Rates;  

 
B. Set a Public Hearing date for June 14, 2016, at 2:00 PM, in the Council Chambers 

for Council’s consideration of increases in City water rates for Fiscal Year 2017; 
and 
 

C. Direct staff to send a Notice of Public Hearing to customers informing them of the 
hearing and proposed changes to water rates. 

 
DISCUSSION: 
 
On November 24, 2015, Council authorized the Public Works Director to execute a City 
Professional Services contract with Raftelis Financial Consultants, Inc. (Raftelis), for the 
development of proposed Fiscal Year (FY) 2017 Water Rates. 
 
Pursuant to California Proposition 218, the Right to Vote on Taxes Act, customers must 
be notified of any proposed increases to rates at least 45 days prior to the date of a 
public hearing.  Staff is recommending mailing the Proposition 218 rate notices to 
customers by April 18, 2016, in preparation for a June 14, 2016 public hearing.  
 
The proposed FY 2017 Water Rates have been developed in preparation for continued 
extreme drought conditions.  Continued drought conditions will result in drought related 
expenses for supplemental water purchases, conveyance of State Water through Lake 
Cachuma, and extended full-production operation of the Charles E. Meyer Desalination 
Facility. In addition, the proposed FY 2017 Water Rates are have been developed 
based on a projected Citywide 35 percent conservation level from pre-drought water 
use.  
 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Proposed Fiscal Year 2017 Water Rates 
April 12, 2016 
Page 2 

 

Revenues 
 
On a long-term basis, revenues must be sufficient to meet the cost of the water system, 
including operations and maintenance expenses, capital improvements, principal and 
interest payments on existing debt, and other obligations. Short-term differences 
between revenues and costs result in the use of, or contribution to, reserves. To 
generate sufficient funds for FY 2017 with the drought-related costs, increased water 
rates and some use of reserves will be needed. 
 
Staff recommends rates be increased sufficient to generate 21% more revenues from 
water sales compared to revenues generated from current rates to meet most of the 
ongoing costs, including capital, of the Water Fund. In addition, in order to reduce the 
impacts to ratepayers, staff recommends the use of approximately $4.7 million of 
reserves for FY 2017 to cover the balance of expected costs. The Council policy 
reserves target for FY 2018 is $18.7 million; at the end of FY 2017, it is expected that 
the Water Fund reserve balance will be $5.8 million below Council policy. 
 
However, since the drought was declared in 2014, the City has postponed water system 
capital projects to reduce cost impacts of the drought to customers. Prior to FY 2017 
Water Rates adoption, staff will again return to Council to identify any additional projects 
or programs that can be cut during the drought emergency, if possible, to minimize use 
of reserves and still provide safe and reliable water service. 
 
Rates Based on Proposition 218 Cost of Service 
 
Total revenue requirements, less revenue from other sources, such as payments made 
by other agencies that use the City’s water treatment plant, and interest earnings, are 
defined as the “cost of service”. This cost of service is used as the basis for allocating 
costs to various customer classes by considering both the average quantity of water 
usage and peak capacity for water usage. Rates are designed to ensure that customers 
pay their proportionate share of costs, based on the cost of service to supply water. The 
water supply costs associated with each of the City’s diverse water sources differ. The 
lowest-cost water sources are allocated to Tier 1 customers, and the more expensive 
water sources are allocated to Tier 2 and 3 customers, as water supplies are limited and 
higher water use is generally for discretionary purposes beyond basic health and 
sanitation needs.  
 
The table below shows an example water bill for single-family homes based on various 
levels of usage and a 5/8” meter. The table represents the total monthly bill, which is 
made up of separate fixed and volumetric components. 

Usage Level Monthly Usage (HCF) Existing Bill Proposed Bill Difference 

Low 4 $40.29 $44.06 $3.77 

Moderate 10 $91.35 $121.88 $30.53 

High 20 $216.77 $296.78 $80.01 



Council Agenda Report 
Proposed Fiscal Year 2017 Water Rates 
April 12, 2016 
Page 3 

 

HCF: Hundred Cubic Feet (1 HCF = 748 gallons)  
 
California Urban Water Conservation Council Guidelines 
 
The City is a leader in water conservation and has designed its rate structure in 
accordance with State guidelines. The California Urban Water Conservation Council 
requires that 30 percent or less of total revenue be recovered from fixed charges. Most 
water bills are made up of two key components: (1) a volumetric charge, based on 
water usage, and (2) a fixed monthly service charge, based on meter capacity.  Even 
though the majority of costs to maintain and operate the water system infrastructure are 
fixed expenses, the City’s water rate structure is designed in accordance with State 
guidelines to minimize increases to fixed charges and collect the majority (70 percent or 
more) of revenue through volumetric charges, which are dependent on water usage. 
This gives customers the most opportunity to reduce their water bill by decreasing water 
usage.  
 
The City encourages customers to reduce their water use during the historic drought, 
and preserve limited remaining water supplies. However, should actual water use be 
significantly lower than the 35 percent reduction from normal (pre-drought) water use, 
which would result in lower revenue from volumetric rates than required to meet 
obligations, the City will need to make adjustments in order to ensure the Water Fund 
meets fixed financial obligations (e.g. debt service, required maintenance, etc.), which 
are incurred regardless of how much water is used. 
 
Debt Coverage Ratio 
 
The City’s Water Fund parity debt obligations contain a covenant that rates must be set 
at a level which is sufficient to generate revenue to maintain a debt coverage ratio of 
125 percent of total debt service on all parity obligations. The debt coverage ratio is 
calculated by dividing the net operating revenue by the total debt service. The proposed 
FY 2017 Water Rates have been developed with a rate model that shows the City will 
meet its debt coverage requirements based on projected water use, revenues, and 
operating expenses. 
 
Should actual water usage and revenues be significantly lower than projections used in 
the rate model, the City could be at risk of not meeting its debt coverage ratio. Staff will 
be monitoring revenue and operating expenses closely in FY 2017 to ensure that all 
debt coverage requirements are met. 
 
It should be noted that the community conservation has been approximately 34 percent, 
cumulatively, since the Stage Three Emergency Declaration in May 2015. This 
extraordinary conservation has helped to preserve remaining water supplies and avoid 
more costly drought supplies, such as expansion of the desalination facility, for at least 
one more year. It is important that current conservation levels of 35 percent continue to 
be achieved should extreme drought conditions continue.  
 



Council Agenda Report 
Proposed Fiscal Year 2017 Water Rates 
April 12, 2016 
Page 4 

 

BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
The proposed FY 2017 Water Rates have been developed assuming a 35 percent City-
wide demand reduction from pre-drought water use, while also meeting the revenue 
needs of the Water Fund, along with some use of reserves. The projected revenue from 
water sales has been set to maintain adequate debt service coverage, including 
sufficient revenue to cover debt service payments, debt service margin, and operating 
costs. Staff will be closely monitoring actual water use, revenues, and debt coverage 
projections to ensure the City meets is debt coverage obligations in FY 2017. If the 
drought condition changes (either improves or worsens), staff will re-assess the 
financial plan and water rates at that time. 
 
 
ATTACHMENT: Proposed Fiscal Year 2017 Water Rate Notice 
 
PREPARED BY: Joshua Haggmark, Water Resources Manager/KD/mh 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Rebecca J. Bjork, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 



1 

 

Date: Tuesday, June 14, 2016, 2:00 p.m. 
Place:   City of Santa Barbara Council Chambers, City Hall 
 735 Anacapa Street, Santa Barbara 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
PROPOSED CHANGES TO CITY OF SANTA BARBARA WATER RATES FOR 

FISCAL YEAR 2017 

CHECK OUT THE WATER RATE CALCULATOR AT:  

www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov/Water 

The average single family home uses 9 HCF per month and would see their water bill increase from $82.84 to $108.91, 
reflecting a difference of $26.07 and an increase of 31%. 
 
Please note, the rates included in this Notice are the highest possible rates that could go into effect July 1, 2016.  

Usage Level Monthly Usage (HCF) Existing Bill Proposed Bill Difference 

Low 4 $40.29 $44.06 $3.77 

Moderate 10 $91.35 $121.88 $30.53 

High 20 $216.77 $296.78 $80.01 

PROPOSED CITY FISCAL YEAR 2017 WATER RATES   
You are receiving this Notice because our records indicate that you are a City of Santa Barbara utility customer.  

If you are not a City water customer, please disregard this Notice.  

 
This Notice describes proposed water rate increases and explains how you can participate in the process. The City’s wa-
ter rate structure is based on a comprehensive rate study that used a rate model to evaluate cost of service, as required 
by Proposition 218.  

Why are water rates increasing? 
 This winter’s rainfall brought very little water to local reservoirs and the City remains in an extreme and historic 

drought condition.  
 Due to the drought, the City faces increased costs to provide additional water supplied from desalination, ground-

water, and supplemental water purchases conveyed through the State Water Project and Lake Cachuma.  
 The City relies on its customers to practice extraordinary conservation to preserve remaining water supplies. The 

proposed rates assume a 35% reduction from normal water use. 
 Adjustments to water rates are necessary to generate revenue to pay for increased costs and financial impacts in-

curred due to extreme drought conditions.  

Will the new water rates cover projected costs? 
The proposed water rates are not anticipated to cover all projected costs. The City plans to use reserves to make up the 
difference between revenue generated and the cost for service, and will postpone capital projects that can be delayed.  

How will the proposed changes impact my water bill? 
Customers are encouraged to use the online water rate calculator to see how the new rates could impact their bill. The 
table below shows the maximum water bill for single-family homes based on various levels of usage and a 5/8” meter. 
The table represents the total bill, which is made up of separate components shown on the next page.  



2 

 

How do I protest? 
If you wish to protest any of the above increases, please deliver your protest in writing and signed, including your name 
and service address, to the City Clerk of the City of Santa Barbara at 735 Anacapa Street, Santa Barbara, CA, 93101, prior 
to or during the City Council’s consideration of this item on June 14, 2016.  (If you wish to submit your protest during the 
public hearing, please deliver it to City Staff in the Council Chambers).  Protests are public records. 
 

When do the drought rates take effect? 
City Council will consider adopting drought rates on June 21, 2016 (one week after the public hearing). The new rates will 
be effective starting July 1, 2016.  

How do I stay informed? 
 Watch City Council meetings live online at SantaBarbaraCA.gov/CityTV or tune in to City-TV Channel 18 
 Explore updated information on drought conditions, conservation, and rates at SantaBarbaraCA.gov/Water 
 Contact City staff at (805) 564-5460. Para información en Español, llame al (805) 564-5342. 
 Attend  City Council meetings; City of Santa Barbara Council Chambers, City Hall, 735 Anacapa St., Santa Barbara  

Customer Class Tiers Current Proposed 

Single Family  Residential   

First 4 HCF $4.20  $4.89 

Next 12 HCF $8.51  $12.97 

All other HCF $18.59  $24.27  

First 4 HCF (per dwelling unit) $4.20  $4.89 

Multi-Family  Residential   Next 4 HCF (per dwelling unit) $8.51  $12.97  

All other HCF $18.59  $24.27  

Commercial/  100% of base allotment $6.53  $7.88  

Industrial All other HCF $15.24  $23.94  

Irrigation – Residential & Commercial 
100% of monthly water budget* $8.51  $12.97  

All other HCF $18.59  $24.27  

Irrigation - Recreation/Parks/Schools 
100% of monthly water budget* $3.70  $3.77 

All other HCF $18.59  $24.27  

Irrigation – Agriculture 
100% of monthly water budget* $2.43  $3.42  

All other HCF $18.59  $24.27  

Recycled Water All HCF $2.96  $3.02  

Outside City Limits Percentage of corresponding in-City rates           130% 

TABLE 2—PROPOSED MAXIMUM FIXED MONTHLY SERVICE CHARGES 

TABLE 3—PROPOSED MAXIMUM FIXED MONTHLY PRIVATE FIRE SERVICE CHARGES (IF REQUIRED AND APPLICABLE) 

  5/8” 3/4” 1” 1 ½” 2” 3” 4” 6” 8” 10” 

Current $23.49  $34.19  $55.61  $109.14  $173.38  $376.82  $676.61  $1,393.98  $2,571.74  $4,070.71  

Proposed $24.50  $35.60  $57.80  $113.29  $179.89  $390.77  $701.54  $1,445.18  $2,666.07  $4,219.93  

Outside City Limits  -  130% of corresponding in-City rates 

  1" 1 1/2" 2" 4" 6" 8" 10" 12" 

Current NA NA $4.67  $17.31  $46.06  $95.59  $170.12  $273.42  

Proposed $2.76  $3.64  $5.16  $19.99  $53.67  $111.77  $199.17  $320.29  

Outside City Limits  -  130% of corresponding in-City rates 

Most water bills are made up of two key components: (1) a volumetric charge based on water usage, and (2) a fixed 
monthly service charge based on meter size. The City’s rate structure is designed in accordance with California Urban Wa-
ter Conservation Council Best Management Practices, which incentivize conservation by limiting the amount of revenue 
recovered from fixed charges. 

 

*What is a Monthly Water Budget? The monthly water budget for irrigation accounts is a calculation of Tier 1 allot-
ment based on the property’s irrigated landscape area and the monthly watering needs of plants. 

TABLE 1 – PROPOSED MAXIMUM VOLUMETRIC CHARGES   
All rates are in $/HCF.   (1 HCF [Hundred Cubic Feet]= 748 gallons)  



Agenda Item No.  20 
 

File Code No.  530.04 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 
 
 

 
AGENDA DATE: April 12, 2016 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Engineering Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Memorandum Of Understanding For The Cabrillo Boulevard Union 

Pacific Railroad Underpass Project 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council: 
 
A. Approve and authorize the City Administrator to enter into a Memorandum of 

Understanding, approved as to form by the City Attorney, with the Santa Barbara 
County Association of Governments for Design and Environmental Approval of the 
Union Pacific Railroad Bridge over Cabrillo Boulevard; and 
 

B. Increase appropriations and estimated revenues in the Streets Capital Fund by 
$800,000 for design phase services of the Union Pacific Railroad Bridge over 
Cabrillo Boulevard to be funded via reimbursement from Santa Barbara County 
Association of Governments. 

 
DISCUSSION: 
 
In January 2014, the Santa Barbara County Association of Governments (SBCAG) 
Board created a project to replace the Union Pacific Railroad (UPRR) Bridge at Cabrillo 
Boulevard in parallel with the pending South Coast 101 High Occupany Vehicle (HOV) 
Lanes Project. The subject Memorandum of Understanding would further the project’s 
development. 
 
The approved and constructed Highway 101 Operational Improvements Project (also 
known as the Milpas to Hot Springs Project) included a new tunnel adjacent to the 
UPRR Bridge to provide pedestrian and bicycle access between Coast Village Road 
and the beachway on Cabrillo Boulevard. The tunnel and multipurpose path 
components were included in that project for necessary consistency with policies 
addressing pedestrian and bicycle coastal access across Highway 101. Despite 
SBCAG’s efforts to construct the tunnel, UPRR was ultimately unwilling to allow the 
tunnel in their right-of-way due to structural concerns associated with the existing 
bridge. UPRR expressed support for bridge replacement as an alternative. 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Memorandum Of Understanding For The Cabrillo Boulevard Union Pacific Railroad 
Underpass Project  
April 12, 2016 
Page 2 

 

In review of the South Coast 101 HOV Lanes Project, the City identified the access and 
circulation deficiencies associated with the existing UPRR Bridge at Cabrillo Boulevard. 
Subsequently, SBCAG created the parallel project, and the City and SBCAG entered 
into a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) for preliminary design of the replacement 
of the UPRR Bridge at Cabrillo Boulevard. One purpose of this preliminary design effort 
was to determine whether there was a feasible bridge replacement option that could be 
supported by the UPRR. In September 2015, the preliminary design received support by 
the UPRR. The City and SBCAG are in agreement that the original MOU has been 
fulfilled and that a new MOU is now required to continue with the next phase of this 
project.  
 
SBCAG has secured funding to complete the next phase of this project. During this 
phase, the City can continue to work with a consultant team to refine the engineering 
aspects of the project, conduct environmental studies, and prepare an environmental 
document with the objective to obtain environmental clearance. City and SBCAG staff 
worked together to develop a new MOU for this phase of work. The SBCAG board 
approved the MOU on March 17, 2016.  The SBCAG staff report and MOU is included 
as an Attachment 1 to this report. 
 
The 2016 MOU provides the contractual mechanism between SBCAG and the City to 
continue to make progress on this project. SBCAG will agree to fund up to $800,000 in 
environmental, preliminary engineering, and design services for the project. This will 
cover the anticipated cost of consultants work products, any UPRR review costs, and 
City staff costs up to 5 percent of the total.  
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION:  
 
SBCAG has allocated $800,000 for this next phase of work. Approximately $2.5 million 
in state and federal grant funds are available for environmental and design work. 
SBCAG will reimburse the City for all participating project costs associated with this 
phase, up to $800,000. This includes up to five percent ($40,000) reimbursement for 
City staff efforts. 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Memorandum Of Understanding For The Cabrillo Boulevard Union Pacific Railroad 
Underpass Project  
April 12, 2016 
Page 3 

 

 
The following summarizes all estimated total Project costs: 
 

ESTIMATED TOTAL PROJECT COST 
 
Conceptual Design (by Contract) $99,105 
Other Conceptual Design Costs - City staff  $10,000 

Subtotal $109,105 
Project Approval and Environmental Document (this phase) $760,000 
Other Project Approval and Environmental Document Costs 
including City staff  

$40,000 

Subtotal $800,000 
Estimated Final Design (by Contract) $712,500 
Other Final Design Costs including City staff $37,500 

Subtotal $750,000 
Subtotal (Design) $1,659,105 

Estimated Construction Contract w/Change Order Allowance  $19,100,000 
Estimated Construction Management/Inspection by Contract $1,500,000 
Estimated Other Construction Costs (design support, agency 
staff, testing, etc.) 

$400,000 

Subtotal (Construction) $21,000,000 
TOTAL PROJECT COST $22,659,105 

 
With the receipt of funds from SBCAG, there will be sufficient funds in the Streets 
Capital Fund to cover the costs for this phase only. Funds have not yet been budgeted 
for final design or construction. Costs for these phases are initial estimates and will be 
refined at the completion of this phase. Funding for future work will require continued 
cooperation between the City, SBCAG, Caltrans, and the UPRR. 
 
 
ATTACHMENT: 1. SBCAG Staff Report with MOU 
 2. Project location map 
 
PREPARED BY: Rob Dayton, Principal Transportation Planner/mj 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Rebecca J. Bjork, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 
 
 
 



SBCAG STAFF REPORT 

SUBJECT: Cabrillo-UPRR Bridge Project 

MEETING DATE: March 17, 2016 AGENDA ITEM:  5I 

STAFF CONTACT: Fred Luna 

RECOMMENDATION:  

Authorize the chair to sign a Memorandum of Understanding with the City of Santa Barbara at a 
cost not-to-exceed $800,000 for project development work related to the Cabrillo Blvd-UPRR 
bridge replacement project and determine that this action is exempt from CEQA under CEQA 
guidelines Sections 15262 and 15378(b)(4).   

SUMMARY: 

A project to improve coastal access in the vicinity of the US 101/Cabrillo Blvd. was first identified 
as a local improvement related to Phase I of the US 101 HOV project (Milpas\Hot Springs).  
However, the project, a proposed bicycle\pedestrian tunnel, was not able to secure approvals 
from Union Pacific Railroad (UPRR), so the project was not implemented as part of Phase 1. 
The scope of the project has evolved since that time in order to satisfy UPRR and the City of 
Santa Barbara’s Local Coastal Plan.  The project scope now includes replacement of the UPRR 
bridge to allow for the widening of Cabrillo Blvd., including bicycle and pedestrian facilities.  

The City has completed a bridge replacement feasibility study pursuant to an MOU executed in 
2013 between SBCAG and the City.  The most feasible bridge replacement option is estimated 
to cost $24.7 million.  A new MOU between the City and SBCAG would be needed for the next 
phase of project development: environmental and engineering studies with the City serving as 
lead agency.   

At its March 2, 2016 meeting, the South Coast Subregional Committee recommended that the 
Board authorize the execution of the MOU for the next phase of work.   Should the SBCAG 
board approve the MOU, city staff has indicated that the MOU would be scheduled for action at 
the March 29, 2016 meeting of the Santa Barbara City Council.   

The budget for the phase of work in the MOU is limited to $800,000.  The funds being used are 
$2.5 million in federal and state funding that SBCAG secured, some of which was programmed 
for the unsuccessful tunnel project 10 years ago.  It is anticipated that this next phase of work 
will take between 18 months and 24 months.  At the completion of this phase, the City will have 
a certified environmental document and will have identified any environmental impacts and 
mitigations, updated cost estimates, and detailed design to support the initiation of the coastal 
permitting process.   At this time, no funding has been programmmed by SBCAG for 
construction of the project.   

ATTACHMENT 

1 



2 

DISCUSSION: 

During the development of the design for the US 101 Milpas\Hot Springs Operational 
Improvements Project (Phase 1 of the HOV Project), a feature to improve coastal access from 
the Coast Village Road/Hot Springs Road area north of US 101 to Los Patos Drive was 
identified as part of the project.  The improvement called for constructing a tunnel under the 
UPRR tracks which proved infeasible due to concerns expressed by UPRR that the tunnel 
would destabilize the adjacent 100 year old bridge.  Thus, the tunnel design was never 
accepted by UPRR.  Consequently, this improvement was not built with other Phase 1 
improvements when those were completed in 2012.  The coastal access improvements under 
the UPRR bridge, however, remained a part of the Coastal Development Permit (CDP) project 
description that was approved by the City of Santa Barbara.  Once a tunnel alternative was 
eliminated from consideration, SBCAG and the City of Santa Barbara began to look at options 
to replace the UPRR bridge over Cabrillo Blvd.  A new, longer bridge over the boulevard would 
provide improved coastal access by allowing shoulders and sidewalks to be constructed for use 
by pedestrians and bicyclists. 

In 2013, the City and SBCAG entered into a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) for a City-
led feasibility study of bridge replacement alternatives.  The primary engineering goal of the 
feasibility study was to better define the scope of improvements and a cost estimate for the 
project.  With that information the project could then be presented to policy makers for a 
feasibility determination.  In fact, the MOU required that the City of Santa Barbara achieve the 
following objectives to demonstrate project feasibility: 

1. Obtain written approval from UPRR on a conceptual bridge replacement alternative.
2. Present the concept to the City Planning Commission and gain approval on the concept

to pursue further studies.

The City hired an engineering firm to work on the feasibility study, and bridge alternatives were 
developed and shared with UPRR, SBCAG and Caltrans.   

In November 2015, the City of Santa Barbara sent a letter to SBCAG indicating that the City had 
fulfilled the requirements of the 2013 MOU (Attachment 2).  SBCAG staff met with City staff in 
December 2015 and does concur that the requirements of the 2013 MOU have been fulfilled. 
The City received concept approval on a bridge replacement alternative from UPRR in 
September 2015.  In early 2015, city staff presented the concept to its planning commission and 
received approval to move forward with the project.  The cost estimate for the most feasible 
bridge alternative is $24.7 million in (2017$), including railroad work, right of way, utilities and 
project support.  The City is determining whether UPRR would have a responsibility to 
contribute to the cost of the bridge replacement.    

At the March 2, 2016 meeting of the South Coast Subregional Committee, the committee 
approved a recommendation to the board to authorize the chair to sign a new MOU with the City 
for the next phase of project development.  In the MOU, SBCAG will agree to fund up to 
$800,000 in environmental studies to attain environmental clearance, preliminary engineering 
and design services for the project.  This will cover the anticipated cost of consultants work 
products, any UPRR review costs and City staff costs up to 5% of the total.  The proposed 2016 
MOU has been included as Attachment 1.  The funding to be made available from SBCAG for 
this work comes from two sources:  the federal Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) 
and previously programmed funds from the State Transportation Improvement Program (STIP).   



3 

Execution of a new MOU is consistent with Board direction from its January 2014 meeting.  At 
that meeting, the Board adopted a policy stating that staff and the US 101 Corridor Advisor 
shall, “Concurrently, simultaneously and on a parallel path [to the US 101 HOV Project Phase 
IV] work with the affected jurisdictions on the San Ysidro, Olive Mill and Cabrillo railroad bridge
projects on design, planning and identification of needed funding.”

COMMITTEE REVIEW: 

An outline of the attached MOU was presented on February 3, 2016 to the South Coast 
Subregional Committee, and the committee recommended the development of a Memorandum 
of Understanding.  At the March 2, 2016 meeting of the Committee, the committee 
recommended the Board authorize the execution of the MOU. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. MOU between SBCAG and City of Santa Barbara
2. Letter from City of Santa Barbara to SBCAG – November 2015



4



5



6



7



Cabrillo Underpass Project MOU between City of Santa Barbara and SBCAG 

Made and entered into on this day, March __ , 2016. 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
a Municipal Corporation 

Mr. Paul Casey 
City Administrator 

ATTEST: 

Matt Fore, Acting City Cleric 
Services Manager 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
Ariel Pierre Calonne 
Santa Barbara City Attorney 

SI Page 

SANTA BARBARA COUNTY ASSOCIATION 
OF GOVERNMENTS 

Ms. Janet Wolf 
Chair 

ATTEST: 

Jim Kemp, Executive Officer 
Clerk of the Board 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
Michael C. Ghizzoni 
County Counsel 

William M. Dillon, Senior Deputy County Counsel 

8 



9



November 17, 2015 

Jim Kemp, Executive Director 
Santa Barbara County Association of Governments 
260 N. San Antonio Road 
Santa Barbara, CA 93110 

SUBJECT:  COMPLETION OF PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING REVIEW, UNION PACIFIC 

 RAILROAD ACCEPTANCE, AND PLANNING COMMISSION CONCEPT 
 REVIEW OF UNION PACIFIC RAILROAD BRIDGE EXPANSION OVER 
  CABRILLO BOULEVARD 

Dear Mr. Kemp: 

In April of 2013, the City of Santa Barbara (City) and the Santa Barbara County Association of 
Governments (SBCAG) agreed on a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) for the purpose of 
determining the feasibility of replacing the Union Pacific Railroad Bridge over Cabrillo 
Boulevard, adjacent to the Cabrillo Interchange with Highway 101. The City and SBCAG have 
completed the steps in the MOU. The City is prepared to enter into a revised or new MOU for 
the environmental and design phase of the project, using the monies that SBCAG recently 
programmed for this effort. 

The key elements of the MOU to achieve project feasibility are: 

 Preliminary engineering review and cost of a replacement bridge;

 Acceptance in writing from Union Pacific Railroad (UPRR) for the replacement of the

bridge;

 Concept review by the City Planning Commission and its acceptance of the bridge

replacement as a fulfillment of the previous Coastal Development Permit of the Highway

101 Operational Improvement Project (now complete);

HDR Engineering was hired by the City to do the preliminary engineering and cost estimate.  
The total construction cost projected to 2017 dollars is estimated at $24,650,000. Approximately 
$4,000,000 of this amount is allocated to the relocation of fiber optic lines on the bridge, the cost 
of which may be passed onto the utilities that own them. We are also investigating the 
applicability of a Public Utilities Commission policy that requires Union Pacific to participate in 
20 percent of the replacement/expansion costs of the bridge.  

The City received written approval from UPRR for the bridge replacement in September 2015 
(see attached letter from UPRR). The approval specifies track layout, clearances, and  

10



Completion of Preliminary Engineering, Union Pacific Railroad Acceptance, and Planning 
Commission Concept Review of Union Pacific Railroad Bridge Expansion Over Cabrillo 
Boulevard 
November 12, 2015 
Page 2 of 3 

the requirement that the Los Patos Way off-ramp be closed, which is also intended as the 
current Highway 101 High Occupancy Vehicles (HOV) alternative for the reconstruction of the 
Cabrillo Interchange. UPRR staff has also indicated that it will permit the use of the Los Patos 
Way off-ramp as the Cabrillo Interchange construction detour ramp, provided that adequate 
vertical clearance is created under its bridge prior to detour routing. 

The Planning Commission was presented with the preliminary engineering work and potential 
environmental and coastal resource impacts in March 2015. Public Works Department staff 
asked Community Development Department staff to determine if the Planning Commission’s 
hearing in March 2015 constituted a concept review for the UPRR Bridge Replacement Project, 
as listed in the MOU. The Community Development Department staff’s response is included in
the attached memorandum. 

At the hearing, the Planning Commission and the public provided conceptual comments on the 
bridge, including bridge design, improved pedestrian/bicycle coastal access, and construction 
impacts on circulation. Although UPRR had not given final written approval of the design, the 
preliminary design reviewed by the Planning Commission was substantially similar to the 
approved Design B. An additional conceptual review by the Planning Commission would only 
cover the same issues. Design work and environmental analysis is required to develop the 
necessary information for further discretionary review. Community Development Department 
staff recommending the next appropriate review of the UPRR Bridge replacement to be a joint 
meeting of the Planning Commission and the Historic Landmarks Commission when additional 
information is available, prior to the Coastal Development Permit application submittal. 

One misconception is that the City Planning Commission “conditioned” the Highway 101
Operational Improvements Project with pedestrian/bicycle improvements in the form of a tunnel 
under the UPRR tracks. However, this is not the case. The desire to improve pedestrian and 
bicycle access originated with the SBCAG Board and its adoption of the Highway 101 
Operational Improvements Project Purpose and Need Statement in January 2000: 

Project Need – The funds programmed by the SBCAG Board for the Highway 101 
operational improvements were intended to address several transportation problems and 
deficiencies on the Route 101 mainline and access ramps, local interchanges, and 
parallel arterials. These problems/deficiencies include: 

 Poor access for all travel modes between the waterfront area and the

Lower Eastside and Coast Village neighborhoods.

Project Purpose – “The purpose of the project is to reduce congestion related to 
merging and improve safety and operations of Route 101 and parallel arterials between 
Milpas Street and Hot Springs/Cabrillo for current and future traffic volumes, in a manner 
consistent with the Department guidelines and standards, Local Coastal Plan policies, 
Highway 101 Coastal Parkway Design Guidelines and minimizing environmental effects. 
This purpose will be met through the following project objectives: 

 Improve access for bicycles and pedestrians between the waterfront area

and Lower Eastside and Coast Village areas.

11



Completion of Preliminary Engineering, Union Pacific Railroad Acceptance, and Planning 
Commission Concept Review of Union Pacific Railroad Bridge Expansion Over Cabrillo 
Boulevard 
November 12, 2015 
Page 3 of 3 

We mention this because the MOU directs that the Planning Commission evaluate the bridge 
replacement’s “applicability to fulfill the related Coastal Development Permit condition placed on 
the Milpas to Hot Springs project.”  While no such Coastal Development Permit condition exists, 
at the hearing in March 2015, Planning Commission Chair Addison Thompson did state that the 
bridge replacement would fulfill the previous project’s intent to address the circulation
deficiencies on Cabrillo Boulevard caused by the existing UPRR Bridge.   

In conclusion, the actions required by the City/SBCAG MOU have been completed. The City is 
prepared to enter into an amended or new MOU with SBCAG to use the funding currently 
programmed by SBCAG for the environmental review and design of the UPRR Bridge 
replacement with the goal of having a Coastal Development Permit approved simultaneously 
with, or incorporated as a part of, the Highway 101 HOV Project. As previously discussed, the 
City is able and willing to take the lead with the consultant selection process, all the way through 
completion of the Preliminary Engineering (Design) phase of the work, provided funds already 
programmed for this project are made available. We look forward to working with you to this 
end. 

Sincerely, 

Rebecca J. Bjork 
Public Works Director 

RJB/hr 

12



Cabrillo Boulevard Union Pacific Railroad 
Underpass Project 

Project Map 

Project Location 

Attachment 2



Agenda Item No.  21 
File Code No.  160.01 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: April 12, 2016 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: City Administrator’s Office 
 
SUBJECT: Request From Councilmembers White And Rowse Regarding A 

Recent Legal Ruling On The Highway 101 Widening Project 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council consider the request from Councilmembers White and Rowse regarding the 
City’s interest in the next phase of the Environmental Impact Report preparation for the 
Highway 101 Widening Project.   
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Attached is a memorandum from Councilmembers White and Rowse requesting that 
information be presented to Council regarding a recent legal ruling on the Environmental 
Impact Report for the Highway 101 Widening Project.   
 
ATTACHMENT: Memorandum From Councilmembers White And Rowse 

 
PREPARED BY: Nicole Grisanti, Administrator’s Office Supervisor 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Paul Casey, City Administrator 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



Attachment



Agenda Item No.  22 

File Code No.  640.04 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: April 12, 2016 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: City Administrator’s Office 
 
SUBJECT: Request From Councilmembers Dominguez And White Regarding 

Staff Review Of Mobile Home Park Conversion Regulations 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council consider the request from Councilmembers Dominguez and White regarding 
staff review of the Mobile Home Park Conversion Regulations.   
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Attached is a memorandum from Councilmembers Dominguez and White requesting staff 
review of the Mobile Home Park Conversion Regulations and institute community 
protection with standards similar to neighboring cities and the County of Santa Barbara. 
 
 
ATTACHMENT: Memorandum From Councilmembers Dominguez And White 

 
PREPARED BY: Nicole Grisanti, Administrator’s Office Supervisor 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Paul Casey, City Administrator 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



Attachment



 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 
  
 
 

AGENDA DATE: April 12, 2016 

TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 

FROM: City Administrator’s Office 
 

SUBJECT: Conference With Labor Negotiator 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
That Council hold a closed session pursuant to the authority of Government Code Section 
54957.6 to consider instructions to City negotiator Kristine Schmidt, Administrative 
Services Director, regarding negotiations with the Firefighters Association and Police 
Officers Association.  

 
 

SCHEDULING: Duration, 30 minutes; anytime 
 

REPORT: None anticipated 
 

SUBMITTED BY: Kristine Schmidt, Administrative Services Director 

APPROVED BY: City Administrator's Office 

Agenda Item No.  23 

File Code No.   440.03 


	1.DOC
	2.DOC
	3.DOC
	4.PDF
	5.PDF
	6.DOC
	7.DOC
	8.DOC
	9.DOC
	10.DOC
	11.DOC
	12.DOC
	13.DOC
	14.PDF
	15.PDF
	16.PDF
	17.DOC
	18.DOC
	19.DOC
	20.DOC
	21.DOC
	22.DOC
	23.DOC
	24.DOC
	25.PDF
	26.DOC
	27.DOC
	28.DOC
	29.DOC
	30.PDF
	31.DOC
	32.PDF
	33.PDF
	34.DOC
	35.DOC
	36.DOC
	37.PDF
	38.DOC
	39.PDF
	40.PDF
	41.DOC
	42.PDF
	43.DOC
	44.PDF
	45.DOC
	Mayor
	APRIL 12, 2016
	AGENDA
	ORDER OF BUSINESS



